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Independent auditor report

To the Board of Directors of Pasha Yatırım Bankası Anonim Şirketi;

Report on the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying unconsolidated balance sheet of Pasha Yatırım Bankası A.Ş. (“the
Bank”) as at December 31, 2016 and the related unconsolidated income statement. unconsolidated
statement of income and expense items accounted under shareholders’ equity. unconsolidated statement
of cash flows and unconsolidated statement ofchanges in shareholders’ equity for the year then ended
anda summary ofsigniflcant accounting policies and other explanatoıy notes to dıe financial statements.

Responsibilili’ ofthe Bank ‘s Board ofDirectorsfor the Uııconsolldated Financial stateıııeııt

Bank management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation ofthe unconsolidated financial
statement in accordance with “Regulation on Accounting Applications for Banks and Safeguarding of
Documents” published in the Official Gazette no.26333 dated 1 November 2006 and other regulations
on accounting records of Banks published by Banking Regulation and Supenision Agency (BRSA),
circulars, interpretations published by BRSA and the provisions of Turkish Accounting Standards for
the matters which are not regulated by these regulation; “BRSA Accounting and Reportins Legislation”
and for suclı internal control as management determines 15 necessaıy to enable the preparation of the
unconsolidated financial statement that is frce from material misstatement, whetherdue to fraud or error.

Independenı A uditor ç Responsibiliiy

Our responsibility 15 to express an opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements based on our audit.
\Ve conducted our audit in accordance with communique “lndependent Audit of Banks” pubhshed by
BRSA on the Offlcial Gazette No.29314 dated April 2. 2015 and with the lndependent Auditing
Standards which is a part of Turkish Auditing Standards promulgated by the Public Oversight
Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (“POA”). Those standards require that we compiv with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
unconsolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An independent audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the unconsolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
independent auditor’s professionaljudgment. including the assessment of risks ofmaterial misstatement
of the unconsolidated financial statements. whether due to fraud or enor. in making those risk
assessments, the independent auditor considers the intemal control reievant to bank’s preparation and
fair presentation of the ıınconsolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the bank’s intemal control. An independent audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used by the reasonabieness of accounting estimates made by the management as
ıveli as evaluating the overail presentation of the unconsolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence ve have obtained is sufflcient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

A membe, 6,m of Erno SYoung GfobM Limined
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Opinion

in our opinion the accompanying unconsolidated financial staİements presents fairly, in ali material
respects, the financial position of Pasha Yatırım Bankası A.Ş. as at December 31, 2016 and the resulıs
of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the prevailing accounting
principles and standards set out as in aceordance wiih BRSA Accounting and Reporting Legislation.

Reports on adsing from otber regulatory requirements:

in accordance with Article 402 paragmph 4 of the Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC”) no 6102; no
signiflcant matter has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the Bank’s bookkeeping
activities for the period Januaıy 1 — December 31, 2016 are not in compliance with the code and
provisions of the Bank’s arücles ofassociation in relation to financial reporting.

in accordance with Article 402 paragraph 4 of the TCC; the Board of Directors submitled to us the
necessaıy explanations and provided required documents within the context of audit.

Other nmtter

The unconsolidated financial statemenis of the Bank as of December 31, 2015 were audited by another
independent audit 1km, who expressed an unqualifled opinion in their audit reports dated Februaıy 22,
2016.

Additional paragraph for convenience translation to Engiislı:

As explained in detail in Note 1. of Section Three, the effect ofdifferences between accounting principles
and standards set out by regulations in confomıity with BRSA Accounting and Reporting Legislation,
accounting principles generally accepted in countries in which the accompanying unconsolidated
financial statements are to be distributed and international Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) have
not been quantifled in the accompanying unconsolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the
accompanying unconsolidated financial statements are not intended to present the financial position,
results of operations and changes in financial position and cash flows in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in such countries and IFRS.

Güney Bdjm ‘ıeifive Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik Anonim Şirketi
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The accompanying unconsolidated financial statements and notes tü these tinancial statements which are expressed, unless
otherwise stated, in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”), have been prepared and presented based on the accounting books of
the Bank in accordance with the Regulation on Accounting Applications for Banks and Safeguarding of Documents, Turkish
Accounting Standards, Turkish Financial Reporting Standards, and related appendices and interpretations of these, have been
audited and presented hereafter.

Mesut ÖZDİNÇ
Chairman of the Audit Committee

.L’ t!
Ali Ihsan TOKKUZUN
Deputy General Manager

Contact information of the personnel in charge of the addressing of questions about this tinancial report:

Name-Sumame/Title
Telephone Number
Fax Number

Özgür İÇİN / Manager
(0212)7058940

:(0212) 345 07 12

Address of the BanL’s Headquarters

Telephone of the Bank
Fax of the Bank
Web site of the Bank
E-mali for correspondence

The unconsolidated year-end ünancial report includes the following sections in accordance with the Communiqu on
Financial Statements and Related Explanations and Notes timi wili be Publiciy Announced as sanctioned by the Banking
Regulation and Supervision Agency.

• SECTION FIVE

• SECTİONSIX
• SECTION SEVEN

- GENERAL INFORMATİON ABOUT THE BANK
- UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL STATEMEN FSOF THE BANK
- EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCIAL POSITION AND RİSK

MANAGEMENT
- EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL

STATEMENTS
- OTHER EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES
- EXPLANATİONS ON INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Agha-Ali
Chairman of the Board of Directors

General Manager

ETTİ
Member of the Audit Committee

Özgür İÇİN
Financial Planning and
Confrolling Manager
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(Amounts are expresscd in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless othenvise stated.)

SECTİON ONE

GENERAL INFORMATİON

Bank’s foondation date, start-up statute, history about the changes in this mentioned statute:

Bank’s commercial title Pasha Yatırım Bankası A.Ş.
Reporting Period 1 January -31 December 2016

A.O.S. 55. Sokak No:2 42 Maslak Ütü 3 Kat:7Address of the Banks Headquaners 34398 Maslak Istanbul, Turkıye
Telephone (0212)705 8900
Fax (0212)34507 12
Website www.pashabank.com.tr
E-mail info’pashabank.com.tr

PASHA Yatırım Bankası A.Ş. (“Bank”, “PASHA Bank”) has been permitted by the decree no. 87,1 1898
dated 17.06.1987 by the Cooncil ofMinisters pursuant to the Banking Law No. 3182 (repealed) and the
Bank has been established under the title of Yatırım Bank A.Ş. headquartered in Istanbul under the Foreign
lnvestment Promotion Law. The establishment of the Bank was permitted by the Ministıy of Industry and
Trade on the date of2I.12.1987, the Aflicies ofAssociation ofthe Bank was approved by the decision no.
1987/5087 dated 12.25.1987 ofthe Ist Commercial Court of Istanbul, and it was registered with the Istanbul
Trade Registry Offlce under the no. 240320 on the date of 25.12.1987 and published in the Turkish Trade
Registry Gazette no. 1924 aM dated 30 December 1987. Commencing its investment banking activities on
the date of 1 March 1988, the Bank has been opemting as of 31 December 2016 through its head office in
Istanbul only and has no branches.

11. Explanation about the Bank’s capital structure, shareholders of the Bank who are in charge of the
management and/or auditing of the Bank directly or indirectly, changes in these matters (if any)
and the group the Bank belongs to:

With the decision taken by TAIB Bank B.S.C. (e) - previous parent of the Bank- regarding the sale of its
shares in the Bank. a share purchase agreement was signed between the Aksoy Holding A.Ş. and previous
parenc of the Bank on 13 May 2013. Upon the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency (BRSA”)’s
approval dated 26 June 2013, Aksoy Holding A.Ş. acquired the 99.4689% of the shares of the Bank. With
the decision taken in the extraordinary general assembly meeting of the Bank dated 31 JuIy 2013 and
numbered 32. share transfer transaction has been approved. The share transfer from previous parent of
the Bank to Aksoy Holding A.Ş. has been completed as at 2 August 2013.

in the extraordinary general assembly meeting of the Bank dated 31 October 2013, it was decided to
increase the paid-in capital of the Bankto from TL 37.000 to TL 39,000. The paid-in capital of the Bank
was increased to 39,000 TL in accordance with the BRSA’s approval as nt 13 November 2013. In the
extraordinary general assembly meeting of the Bank daled 21 November 2013, it was decided to increase
the paid-in capital of the Bank to from TL 39,000 to TL 80.000. The paid-in capilal of the Bank was
increased to 80,000 TL in aceordance with the BRSA’s approval as nt 29 November 2013.

PASHA Bank OJSC and Aksoy Holding A.Ş. has agreed on transferring the majority shares of the Bank
to PASHA Bank OJSC. Acquisition of TL 28.795,121 of the Bank’s capital by PASHA Bank OJSC and
increase in the paid-in capital from TL 80,000 to TL 255,000 upon the acquisition. resulting as 79.9196%
of the shares to be owned by PASHA Bank OJSC, were approved by the BRSA’s decision dated 26
December 2014 and numbered 6137.

Paid-in capital increase from TL 80,000 to TL 255,000 by TL 175,000 cash, approval of the share transfer
and changing the Bank’s title as “Pasha Yatırım Bankası A.Ş.” have been approved in the Extraordinaıy
General Assembly of the Bank dated 27 January 2015.
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NOTES TO FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
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(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

GENERAL İNFORMATİON (Continued)

The change of Bank’s title as “Pasha Yatırım Bankası A.Ş.” and trade name as “PASHABank” has been
registered on 2 March 2015 and announced on Turkish Trade Registry Gazette dated 6 March 2015 and
numbered 8773.

Acquisition of remaining 5 1,000 shares of Aksoy Holding A.Ş. by PASHA Bank OJSC and increasing
Pasha Bank OJSC shares from %79.9196 to %99.9196 has been approved by the BRSA’s resolution dated
18 December 2015 and numbered 6583. The related BRSA resolution has been announced to the Bank
by statement dated 23 December 2015 and numbered 18038.

The share transfer was accounted in the statutory accounting records with the Board of Directors decision
dated 24 December 2015 and numbered 2015/1 10.

Na Su r.naım.eİC meriaTe
-

PA SN LB şnk.O - .ş4%2.Şi
Ohçc..._._ .°
Total 255,000t %10

111. Explanation on the Board of Directors, membcrs of the audit committee, president and executive
vice presidents, changes in thcse matters (ifany) and shares of the Bank they possess:

Share
Name Education Percentage

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Vice President of the Board ofDirectors<ıı

Member of the Board of Directors

Member of the Board of Directors

Member of the Board of Directors <3>

Independent Member of the Board of Direciorsi
Member of the Audit Committee

Independent Member of the Board of Directors/
Chairman of the Audit Committee

Independent Member of the Board of Directors

Member of the Board of Directors/
General Manager

Assistant General Manager

Assistant General Manager t2)

Agha-AIi Kamalov

Jalal Gasımov

Taleh Kazimov

Shahin Mammadov

Kamala Nuriyeva

Necip Süreyya Serdengeçti

Mesut Özdinç

Adnan Aykol

Hikmet Cenk Eynehan

Ali Ihsan Tokkuzun

Ayşe Hale Yıldırım

PhD

Postgraduate

Postgraduate

Postgraduate

Postgraduate

Postgraduate

Postgraduate

Graduate

Postgnduate

Postıraduate

Gnduate

(1) Agha Ali Kamalov is assigned as Chairman of the Board of Directors. Jalal Gasimov is assigned as Vice
President of the Board of Directors with the Board decision dated 30 March 2016, numbered 2016122.

(2) Ayşe Hale Yıldırım is assigned as Assistant General Manager responsible from Corporate Marketing,
Corpomte Communication, Human Resources and Administrative Affairs with the Board decision dated 29
July 2016 numbered 62.

(3) Kamala Nuriyeva 15 assigned as Member of Board of Directors with the decision taken at Extraordinary
General Meeting dated 25 November 2016.

Partnership structure of the Bank as of 31 December 2016, is stated below

Title

The shares of the above individuals in the Bank are insigniflcant.
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GENERAL INFORMATİON (Continued)

IV. Explanation on shareholders having control shares:

Explanation on shareholders having control shares of the Bank as of 3 1 December 2016, is stated below;

Share
Amounts Sharc PaUl-in Unpaid

Nar/Ç9pıçj4;j___ (nam na!J percentage Capita!(ıu mina!) pprtUg
i!JaL 152,877 Ş__.üŞfl

Ador Ltd. 76.439 %29.98 76,439
Arif Pashayev 25,480 %9.99 25.480 -

V. Information on the Bank’s sen’ice type and ficid of operations:

The Bank operates as an investment bank and as of 3l December 2016 the Bank has 39 employees
(3! December2ol5:31).

Vi. Existing or Potential, Actual or Legal obstacles on Immediate Equity Transfer Behveen the Bank
and its subsidiaries or Repayment of the Debt:

None.

3
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SECTION TWO

UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS

1. BALANCE SHEET (STATEMENT OF FINANCİAL POSITİON)

.4. J_.h
ASSEİS Note 31 December 2086 38 December 2085

-—--.——____

-—-—-.,----————-—-——-- ,_1k FC ToLj
1. CASII AND BALANCES VdTİI CENTRAL BANK Il> 14,1041 19.632 33.436 788 11.3751 82,663
Il. FINASCIAL ASSETS AT FMR VALLE TIIROLGH PROFIT

.

ORLOSSjQ_ 2J - nI 281 603 -; 603
‘1 TdınjFınıçşIAsss_ L 311 Il — 604 604
2.1.1 1 Govaıımcnt Dcb< Secırıtles • .j . - -, -
IT2Sha,t Cenıficales -________ - - - -
2.1.3 TndmgDerivaliveFinmrialAsscts - 281 28i 604 - 604
2.1.3 OthaMa,ketableSccmicies . . - - - -
2.2 FınamI A,srn ıij1Tv üavuQh PmflI 0< Losı -
2.2. 1 Govenunenı Dcbt Sccwities - - -

2.2.2 SIwc Cenıficatcs - - - -

2.2.3 Loam - - -
2.2.4 Otbe, Maıkcıable Secıüıes - - -

ili. BANKS J)__ 19.028 11116 29,1441 26028 21,329 47,357
IV. MONEY MARKflS 35.833 lS,133t - -, -

4.3 Inanbarık Mcmcy Matet Pt....n..* .
- -

4.2 Rzcoi,bl bin winbd Sinek P4’..” Mmwy M.kü 13.133 15.133 - 1
4.3 Receıv*Is hm Revene Rwrv1e Aainfl . -I - -
V. AVAflABLE-FOR$ALE FmANCıALAnS (Net :jc 13,344 6£73 20,53* 9,619J - 9,619
5.1 5tCinüfi ._ - — -
52 OovıanaDebtSaaflie 6.1% - 6,196 9.61ğ1 - 9,619
3.3 Ode,Markü1e Secw 7.663 6,674 14,342 -l

Vi. LOAPĞ : 31l0 92,33* 4a),s7e 881.1871 37.351 245,743
6.8 Loto 3l1, 92,330 403.8701 183.187; 57.5 243,744
6.1.1 LinBink’.RiğOıoım . . 7.6!ÖE 4621 8,082
6.L.2 OovetintDü5arıge — - - -i -

6.1.3 Othe, — 38 l,29Q 92,580 403,870 180,3671 57.0951 231,662
6.2 • Lotııs wuür FolIow-ım . - -1 -
6.3 5 ıc Ptovısions (-) . .
Vii. FACTORING RECEIVABLES . . - -

yılı, t HELD-TO-SIATrRITV SEC(RITIES (Net
.

8.1 Oovcnuncnı Dcbı Secuntıc, 1 . - -
82 OtİElarkctabIcSccwiucs . . 4
IX. 1 lNVttğWKğğööXtEtI . .. . .
9.1 .,, . .

92 LJao....h..i%q “. . — , .. . .. .. - -

Val LL_j. t—- L ‘‘ .

921 N-fra Inü> . . -

L SUBSIDIARIES(NetU . .. • Er . . . -
10.1 . .p- . .
10.2 UngonaşIlütod Non-Fin.nciğlSı . . - .

.ZL. JOINrVENTURES(Net> ..

- .

ii Con.olidaıed Bo.ed on Eguity Mtd . . . - . . . . -

1.2 UnconsoHdaı . . - . -

1.2.1 FineüI John Ventures .. . . .
1.22 Non-finonojıl John Venlurn . . ., .

x1E LEASE REğNXiiğ (Net> .

. .

12.1 Pintacial Lease Receıvables . . . . - . .

12.2 ÖUonaflğ?ıvab1es . . . .
12.3 OtSer . -

Si_ rn1JiiJü__ . - -
XIII. HNANCIAL ASSETS JJJL
13.1 Fair Vahıt Kede .
13.2 Cetli Flow Hcd . -
83.3 Foı-ei Net lnveşıment Hedx - - -
XIV. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Net) 681 . 681 304 504
XV INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Net) JjL 981 468 463
13.1 Goodwill . . -

13.2 Oüser . 931 . ğij 468 468
XVI. INVESTMENT PROPERTY LN!i) - - -- - . -
XVIL TAXASSET 689 689 708 708
17.1 CmTentTaxM.et ,. — . 81 . 81
172 DeIndT.xAsset — Tjsf 6b 27 627
XVIII ASSETS HELD FOR RESALE AND DISCONTINUED
•,____ğjpNŞ.tN.t............... üL) -..

18.1 HcldforRcsale - . .

- - ..- .,
XIX. OTIIERASSETS

.... - - .... il!) 9 -Ş 4Q3
— bi!

TOTAL ASSETS 388.029 129.328t 510571 231.607 90,798 322,405

The aceompanying notes are an integral pafl of these linanelal statcments.
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t. STATEMENT OF FINANCİAL POSITION (Continued)

1 L Curreot Period Pr(or Pedod
LIAOILITIFS Nole 1 3 December 20(6 3! Uecember2OlS

<Seçtion
,_,_TL FC Total TL FC Tani

1. DEPOSITS (Il -: - - - -

1.1 DcposıısofBank’sRiekG,oop - - ‘ -

JL__2h_ -I
Il. ı1PLN9PERIVATIVE FINANCLAL LLIBILrTIES (2) 1.6031 . 1.603 20 28 38
IIL FİNÜS BORROWED 3) 46373 135,523 191,897

- 71311 71311
IV. INTERBANKMONEYMARKETS . 15.963 15,963
41 FundsfromlntettankMoırjMwket

‘ - - - - - -

3.2 Fumü ftom lst,nbd Stxk E,xh!ngt Monev Market 1 1306 11306 -

4.3 FuMı Pmvided Und Reptnbasc Aeemems 4.657 4,657 -

4’. MARKETABLE SECCRES ISSUED (Net) JŞ)_ 37.239 37.239 . -

3.1 BılIs — 37j3i1 37.239 - - —

5.2 As set Backed Secıaitics . . . - —

3,3 Boo4s - - - . —

Vi. FUNDS — 3.901 16 3,917 49 10,223 18,272
6.1 Bontwer Fımds ::i 3 16 3,917 49 10,223 10.212
6.2 Otha — - . . —

Vii. MISCELISNEOUS PAYABLES 29 1.425 1.333 100 100
..YflL 1LSflLŞ_____________ J!L 54W1____ - 5.112 5,292 46 5,338

IX. FAa0R1NG PAYABLES - . - - -

X. LEASE PAYABLES (Net) - - -

10.1 Financial Lease Payables - - . . -

10.2 Opeünal Lease Payables — -I -1 - 1 -

10.3 -ı -ı - 1__- -

104 1 Dcfesnd Finaacial 1_tass Esp.’ua ) . -! .
XL t BEDGING DERİVATIVE FINANCLkL LİABILITIES (9) 1 .! . - -

11.1 1 FairVLueHedge 1 .; . - - -

111 Casbflow Hedr i - . . -
11.3 Fot.pıNeılnvestnwmHod .. - -
MI. PROVISİONS J.L 6,435 - 6,435 4302 4302
12.1 Gencin) Loan 1_ost Mrnüion — 4.4711 - 4.471 2,670 2.670
121 Rcsmawiag ftotüiom —
12.3 1 Rtsawe for Enşloyec Rights 3321 - 352 299 299
12.4 insınııce Tecimkal Provisions (Net) — . -
12.3 Osha Ptovisiwn 1612 1.612 1333 -1 1333
XIII. TAX LIABIUTY Jjfl L079 3,079 362 482
13,1 Cuncıu Tez Liabliity — 2.079 - 2,079’ 482 - 482
(31 DekrTedTaLiabilily — -

XW. PAYABLES FOR ASSET IIELD FOR RESALE AND
DISCON’TINUED OPERATIONS . -

14.1 Held for Resale -
14.2 DcomhıucdDjona —____

XV. SUBORDINATED LOANS - - —

XVI. SHAREHOLDERS’ EOUfY 244.65S 230Mi
-

304S2
16.1 Paid-in Capital — 233,000 - 253.000 255.000 —— 253,000
6.2 Resewes — Il 1! (90) - (90)

16.2.1 SlunPrcnüum .
16.2.2 ShaıtCancctlazionProfils
16.2.3 Mwketable Securisies Valuaıion Reaen’c - Il (90) (90)
16.2.4 bis Astc!s Revalualion Resene — . .

1€2t j Leıeş.E,.___.,. -
16.2.6 InvesÜncntPr!ps.rN,RevaIualionResen’c - -

16.2.7 Bonus Shares Obtained fon Invesıments in Msociatcs.
Subsidiades and Joint Venıures .

16.2.8 , —
‘

16.2.9 Valus Digerences ofAssets Heid for Resaic and Discontınucd
Operations . .

16.2.1
t. Jj!’.£eeLs5L_.__,.

16.3 Pmfit Rescnes 324 . 324 324 324
J!fl Sflisrvea__..... . 29
JAL .. ._1L 295
İ3ExtinondinaıyResen’es tl
16.3.4 Other ProOs Rescn’es . 1
Jt_ 1s.9.j1iELU9aL .,..,.._,,.,

0677)! - (10677)! ‘468’)
2fl££XP5’ Los ‘ •-— ....,,,.J.2±R1 - m46

16.4.2 Currcnt Year Income! lLoaa) 14.01151 4.005 8,787 . 8,787
TOTAL LIABILITIES — 363373! 146,984 5103571 230.797 81.608 322,305

The aecompanying notes are an nlegral port of these linancial siatements.



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS ORIGİNALLY İSSUED
İN TURMSH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
UNCONSOLIDATED OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITTMENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounıs are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL’) unlcss othcnvise stated.)

Il. OFF-BALANCE SHEET
Corrent Period Pdor Penod

0FF’0ALANCESIIEETC0MMITjIENTS Nole 3’ December 2016 3 Decenber2Ols______
Senin8

. .Ihtllli,. ..iP Ç ......,J!
X’’ orr BLANCESIIEETC0lMlTMENTS(j+II+IIjf jğ27 ,,_71ı83 06 131 21L157

1 GUÜANTEESANDW%RKMflIES J1J, 659 67330 126Ş95
1 T 8_eller, otGuornnlee 41.119 I11,Ş70 59,ğ5 44,829 04,494

i ‘c — —

8 1.2. Guanntecı Giyen for Forcırnı Trade Çperutıons . . . - 8,754 8,fl
9W - 130,45j 4UI ‘9TT31 “99 :ad “'‘93.740

:‘ :rjer .— . - . -:
t Tl Im29LeIıer orAncepance . .

:ıı:r- :öi oirAtiür . .

tl” LetıasofĞit 6984 69M - 22301 3j
t.rr ‘bjtiıi3Tı_______________________ “1fl “t - 121b1 ““22.50’
‘T3 “titenTidr “ - . . -

9C
- —..-: -

“Fr”'’ — — - — —

Trr 3diiients ta it a8nütlhe KtlEfTurkey - - -

rr 006cr Endoncments - . -

ir’ . - -

ir_______________ -

..-- .:.__ - -

‘lT” 006cr Guaronıee. ‘9.356 j2,36 - - -

9v- öiüllateeü - .

‘t ‘ZöWütMENs 12 - Il l0Ş, 8,437 10348
ır” ıl - 1 “1b,şo 0,437 18.946
‘ir” - -

-

,,,,,,,j,475 8,43 7 16,9 12
‘ir-

— PurchaüWSiiiZmmıoneoı, ‘ 2,009 ‘ınr Share ilJommiImentsIoAssocimc, and Subddianes ‘ - - - -

i,TC’ Commıtmenıs f67tiLımıt. ‘ - - -

‘TIr iiüTasuehrageZommitmcnts ‘ - - -

‘i,rr imenı.oroerve beposıt Keqoırenıenta - - -

,r- tomnitment, f6?Zhea,eı ‘ .

‘iiv- Tax and Fund üdiiiiics iŞ’Egpon Commihnents il iT 25 - 25
ınr CommıtmiiiTor öedıt Card ümit. - - , -

‘irir Pmmotıon Commım,cnta for Creılit Ccrd. .4 Bu1do Sa’mca - - - . . -

‘111. iÇiNe. fi,m üı Sit Coonmiunent. of Merlıetable Seanitic. . -

‘i.rr lw.bin for oet Sit Commitmanta of Müük Süde. ‘ -

‘ur” 086cr knvüle Coımnitma,t. - - . - . -

“fl”” Revoab4e Commıtmait. . - - - - -

‘irr keü1e Commitmait. for Lo., Lima. - - -- - . . -

‘ifl” 086cr Kev4e Commimın . . , , -

‘İW’’ DERWATIVE flNANOAL INSTRUMENTS i> ‘‘]ii ‘‘B’ilt ‘933t 38,259 71,316
Tl Hüng Daivgüve Finanaü b,,tmmaıls - - - - -

T1 Trmınn. for Faır Vüue Hedec - - -

‘iT2 Tmnsacüona for C flow Hed . ,

‘212-” Tgaueaion. for Foreign Net Inve.omnt Hedae - - -

‘IT” Treding Daivave flnmıcıi Inbıjment. 23 865 25 397 49 2d2 35357 ,,,j3S9 71316
Ttr Foncrd Foreign Cutmooy Bis/Sel Trmısaeüon. “‘T513 ‘“ft! “9uıl! 3,035 3.794 7,629
Ttr’ Ponş.rd Ponian Cı.miıcy tr.n,action.-B 10 İ1 3 519 “D3W j,t35 - 3,033
‘Tfl Fonvgrd Foreign Cuımi.cy Trarsacbone-SZT ‘“fji —idı 14,024 . 3.794 3,794
1fl’ Sv Trarneetion. KMaed 80 Foreign Cuneiıcy cr4 Intereot Kate. “iö,£il Jil 2İ,54Ş 32,122 31465 63.307
‘ITIl” Foreign Ojnawş Swıp-Bu - - 10,419 32,822 - 32,822
‘flIT• Foreign Cw.aw, - 11,130 - 31,465 31.463
‘Tur’ intereat Kate Sw-Buy - -

ıiur bieere.0 Kat Seıw-5e8 - -

ur” Foreign Ora,cv, btnt Tat and Secunilıe, 0,tions
‘ - . - -

‘Tflr’ ForeignöMTaıcyO$ıom-Buy ._______ - . .

urr Poragn üratey Ösiom-Sel , . .

İTIr’ lnterw Kate Option.-Buy - - -

utr jıtereol Kate Öırnom’seI - - - . -

urr Sütie. Optıon.’Bu
‘Tfl Saninüre Oçtıon.-SJ - - -

‘2iT” Foreign ünmioy Future. - - - -

‘nır Foreign üjna,cv Future.’B
-

7fl2 Foreign Conercy Futurgn-ST - -

‘TY Intes’e.* Kate Future. - - . - -

iTIr’ Intereot Kate Futura-Bıs - - . - -

‘2131” 9iüiFLl Future-Seh - - ‘

ur oü -

F rrEMs IIELD IrCU TZ DW —i --

flŞ,83i 3ğ3jj ğ 90,809 1e.Öfl

‘Zt Cuatomer Fund.4 Portfolio Wüce, - -: - —

‘T2-” Inyeatmeot Sea,ntıe. Füld in CuıIV - -

nr— tbaıues Kaneived for Cofleaıon 951 - 955
ir— CommervıjNotan Receıved WColleciıon ‘t . - - , -

r” KiFle.____________ - - - -

S’r” AsüWkeceıved17ŞiiNVöienıng - - - . -nr tfliWiüiiı, vüt Cuııody - . . , -

nr” -ziiiaiir”” - ‘t - : -

w— çEs RECEIVED
——

60300 258058 %fl 42a4t0 146,331
T17’ MarketablTSecı,ntiea - 52 788 52,788 - 43,772 43m
11”’ duanntee Notes “1’flı 1 C4t3 fl3524 4,3li 5.646 99,080
r QıC_ — — - - -—

- —I O9 “jfl ““9679 2.679
.,C.SA______ —- - - - -

1! Immovable 24.350
- 24 930 . , -

rr
— —

— — - ,: ‘I7E” !1t4iTJ!.m!d.Çi9a, , .n. t -. - -Vi. ACCEPtEDINDEPENDENTGUARANTEES ANDWAHRANTIES 30 45,588 15.548 ‘ 42,39’ 42391
TOTAL OFF-BALANCESHEET COMNIITMENTS <“B) 354,472 198.674 553.ü6 203399 102,835 408,834

The accompnnying notes ure an integral part of these iinancinl statements.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED

UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS ORİGINALLY ISSUED

İN TURMSH, SEE NOTE İ OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATİİUM BANKASI A.Ş.

UNCONSOLIDATED İNCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless othemise stated.)

111 STATEMENT OF INCOME (PROFIT AND LOSS)

Curreni reriod Pdor Pedod
INCOME AND ENPENSE ITEMS Note

(Section 1 Januaey — I ianuaty -
!!r- !Y) LP££Pı!!JQi6

L_ INTEREST !.NÇ9 —

37.226_ 26.183
.1 Inıcresı on Loans 33.683 17.617

L —— 148 6
.3 Inlerest Received from Banka 1.579 6.691
.4 Intereat Keceived from Money Madecı Tmnsactiona 186 587
.5 Inıerest Received from Marketable Sccudıics Ponfollo 1.630 1.252

. .I Tndıngrinancial Aiseta
.5 2 Financial Assets at Fair Valuc thmuh Pmtit or Losa

1 5.3 Availnble-for-sale Financial Aisrıs 1.630 1.252
1.53 —. -

1.6 Financial Lease Income
1.7 Oıher İnterest Income - -
J!. J!TLRIEEXPENSE (-) LJN) (his)
fl
2.2 İntereston Funds Bormwed (-) S.000)
2.3 Interest Erpense on Monoy Market Tmnsaotions (-) j6)

J__ İntereston Secıüies Issued (-) —— (751)
2.5 Other İnıcrest Expensee (-) (İZ) —____________ (285) (125)
ili NET INTERESjINCO%IE<IğIl 30.512
IV NET FEES AND COMMİSSIONS INCOMEIEXPENSE 1,1 345
4.1 Feas and Comnüuions Received 1.317 579
4.1.1 Non-caah Laans 1,171 270
4.1.2 Other (12) 146 309
4.2 Feet and Comnüaaioas Paid (-) ( ISI) (234)
421 Non-caah Loana (-) (27) —
4.2.2 Othcr(-) (12) (160) (234)
V DWIDEND İNCOME (3)
YI TRADİNG INCOMi(j9SS) (Net) (4) 4,784 1,102
6.1 Tradinapaina/(Loases) on Securides —-____________ (23) (460)
6.2 Treding Gains/(Losses) on Detivative Financial Instnıments <779) (1.132)
6.3 Foreign Exchan5e GainW(Loıaea)

-.

5.586 2.694

i!L_ OTHEROPERATINGINCOME 99 97

111k_ ıOTAL OPERATING İNCOMEfl4Ş+V+Y!±Yii) 36,525 26,565
IL PROVISİON FOR LOAN LOSSES AND OTHER RECEİVABLES (-J -

(6) (1,801) (2,118)
JÇ.____ OTHEROPERATING EXPENSES (-) .. ....—

(7) (I6,3 (12,%)
NET OPERATİNG_INCOM(ŞSJJjİX+X>______________ 18,112 11,484

MI EXCESS AMOUNT RECORDED AS İNCOME ARTER MERGER
7<111 INCOMEI(LOSS) FROM İNVESTMENTS İN SUHSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED BASED ON

—— ıq7.L.Ill9P_____________________
..MY MONETARY POSİTION

.SY !N£2MfltO (8) 12 11,4

.NY —- TAX TROVISION FOR CONTINUING OPERATİONS (-) (9) (4dPD (2.697>

)_, rt (4191)
6.2 Dcfcrrvd Ta Provision 84 (2,697)

.1’ ÇO !f.t(L 9•Ş LlÇM£9I!PING OPERATİONS (XV-XVİ) ..JiL . 14,005 8.787
%VIIl. INCOME FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATİONS

8.1 IııcoıTıe 6-am Non-Cunent Asseis Heİd for Resale
8.2 Saİr Income 6-on Associates. Subaidianes and Joint Venımes . -
83 - fmnaoisconttpjLo

7<17<. EXrENSES FROM DISCONTİNUED OPERATİONS (-) -
!!i.. EaneftnrnN9flÇt,joReaaIe_ ——
192 Salt Losses fiom Associates. Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures -

J±2 ç.!JİPaç1!P.aL —-—— --—————-- —-— —_____

.fl. —- ıNm Ç>FŞ•R L1431R OMDİSCONI.!llgL9E 1!.9NŞ!flFPL_ Jli -

.,‘ÇL_ 1X ILQNŞtL a. — -
Jj____ _:_ -
JJL — - — . .

M!_ !±!13.f1Ç9?w(L 95 )••fR9? P.tŞÇ2NY N1!P %T 9.N!.(k-W9 .. ..{ .....U9i -
5lQ NET INCOME/(LOSS)Ç%VIİ+\\Iİ) — — 1 (I) roos

Eamingı/(Lats) ısa shaer 1 0.0539 0.0345

The accompanying noles are an inlegral port of these financial slatements.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED

UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED

İN TURMSH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.

UNCONSOLIDATED INCOME AND EXPENSE ITEMS ACCOUNTED İN EQUİTY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of’ Turkish Lira (‘TL”) unless othenvise stated.)

IV. STATEMENT OF İNCOME AND EXPENSE İTEMS ACCOUNTED İN EQUİTY

1 Curreat Pedod Prim Pedod
1 January — 1 .İanuory —

3! December 2016 31 December 2015

INCOMEANDEXPENSEITEMSACCOUNTEDİNEQUITY

ADDITİONS TOTIİE MARKETABLE SECURITIES VALUATİON RESERVE FROM THE AVAİLADLE
1. FOR SALE FINANCIALASSETS 126 (105)
İL REVALUATİON DİFFERENCES OF TANGIBLE ASSETS -

İli. REVALUATİON DİFFERENCES OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS -

IV. FOREİGN EXCILiNGE TRANSLATİON DİFFERENCES FOR FOREİGN CURRENCY TRANSACFİONS -

INCOME/LOSS ON CASH FLOW IIEDGE DERIVATIVE FINANCİAL ASSETS (Eflecdve Port of Fair

YL.. !IÇşgçşL ..________________ - -

PROFİT/LOSS FROM FOREİGN INVESTMENT IIEDGE DERIVATIVE FINANCİAL ASSETS (Effecdve
YL,. gç)

... — .. -

yIl EFFECTS OF CIİANGES İN ACCOUNTING POLİC? AND ERRORS -

Y1 ‘0T.!!.R !.Ç 95 LNP E\ IEN S ACCOUNTED İN EŞUITYACCORDİNG TO TAS -

İL D !E QC FR NY gı9.m!ıı!!NçıQ_______ - (25) 21

ZNr N£O MEİLOSS CC OUNTED DIRECTL YİN EqmTv +Ht.+İx) 101 (84)

xi. kURRENT PERİOD INCOMEILOSS l3,00 8,78

—-.-..-—,______ —— —. -

Incornestalomenı
Porüon of Foreign Inveaımcnı Hed8c Dcdvaıivc Financial Aascıs Rcclasailkd and Pıtsented on ille lncomc

11.3 Siatemcnl
11.4 Olha 14,005 8.787

ıı.froTAL INCOMEILOSS RELATED TO ThE CtJRRENT PERİOD (X+XI) 14,10< 8,703

The uceompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONVENİENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLİCLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS ORIGİNALLY İSSUED
İN TURMSH, SEE NOTE İ OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRİM BANKASİ A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in ihousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless oIhervise staled.)

Vi. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

1,1
1.2

1.3
1.6

1.8

CASII FLOWS FROM BANKING OPERATIONS

Onşra6ne Prolit Before Chanee, in Operatine Msets and Llabiiitiö

Interest Received
Intereat Paid
Dividend Received
Feet and Commiasions Received
Other income
Coilections from Pttviously Written-o(T Loans and Other Receivables
Payınents la PeaonneI and Sen1ce Suppiien
Taxes Paid
Other

Chanea in Oneratlım Asaeb and Uabiiida

Net (lncreaseDecrease in Tmding Secueitieu
Net <inereaseyDecrease in Fair Value Tiuouah ProfWLo,s Financial Assete
Net (increaseyDecrease in Dua fiom Banks
Net <Incr,aseyDcvreasa in Loans
Net <increasevflecrease in Other Asaets
Net InceeaseflDectnse) in Basık Deoosia
Net hıcrease4Decrtase) in Other Deposu,
Net lncreasel(Dccmase) in Fonda Borrowed
Net lncreascqDecma,e) in Pavables
Net Increasei(Dectease) in other Uabulities

Net Caah Provided (mm Bankina Ooeradoıu

CASH FLOWS PROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net Caah Pmovided İmam 1 (Paid For) Invatlnz Acalvides

Caah Pdd for Acaoitition oflnvesbnenb. Associates and Subsidiaries
Caah Obısined fiom Disposal of Investments, Associstes and Subsidiatlea
Purehases of Pmpcny and Equipment
Disoosais of Pmncıtv and Eouioment
Cash Paid for Pntha,e of lnvesnnents Availablc.for.SaIe
Cash Obasined fiom Bale of investments Avaulable-for’Sale
Cash Paid fir Purchase of lnveshııent Secueities
Cash Oblained 6am Bale of Investnıent Securides
Other

CASH PLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net Cash Previdad frans flnandna Acdvlda

Caah Obtained 6am Fonda Bormwed and Securitia Issued
Cash Used for Repayment of Fonda Bonnwed and Secudeies Issued
Issuad Caoital Insanımenas
Dividends Paid
Paymcnts for Finance Leases
Other

EffcctofChanse la Foreiza Eıchanae Rale on Cash and Cash Eouivalent,

Net lncreasellDecrease) in Caah and Cash Eooivalents (1+11+111+1V)

Cash and Caah Equivaknts at the Beginnine of the Period

Caah and Caah Eoulvalents al ıhe End ofthe Period (V+%’I)

The aceompanying notes are an integral pan of Ihese financial slaıements.

A.

1.1

.1.3

Note (Secllan
Five.’VIl

Curren’ Period

.1.4

1 January.
il December 2016

Prim’ Perlad

.1.7

t January
31 December 2015

.1.9

20.288

1.2

34.140

8.354

1.2.1

<2.346)

1.2.2

20,108

1.2.3

1,260

(718)

(.2.4

5.887

1.2.5

(2)

1,228

1.2.6

(7,969)

<884)

1.2.7

<2.691)

1.2.8

(7.993)

(6,000)

1.2.9
1.2.10

(35,190)

<5.180)

1.

(129,947)

<2)

Il.

<7.630)

(556)

(155,6%)

il.

4,235

(11.752)
(188,748)

2.1

(2)

2,657

2.2

116,978

2.3
2.4

6,923

64,273

2.5
2.6

<14.902)

2.7

4.179

2.8

<121393)

2.9

(11.342)

C.

(8.596)

Il!.

(364)

3.1
3.2

(28.689)

3.3

(334)

18,352

3.4

Il

3.5

1.663)

3.6

3,834

(841)

IV.

<433)

V

36,488

Vi.

36.488

173,853

Vii.

175.000

(2)

<147)

842

(1)

10,886

2.153

Il)

38,238

47,0 17

59.134

U31

48248

Il



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED
İN TURKISH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTİON THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLİDATED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT DISTRIBUTİON
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts am cxpresscd in thousLmds of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless othcnvise staled.)

2.1
2.2
2.3
2.3.1
2.3.2
2.3.3
2.3.4
2.3.3
2.4
2.5

‘Il.

APPROPRIATED RESERVES
SECOND LEGAL RESERVES (.
DIVIDENOS TO SHAREHOLDERS (.)
Ta awn.n of ordinaiy shans
Ta own.n of pdvileged shans
Ta awnen ofmtned alum.
Ta omfit aha.inR bondı
Ta Soldan, ofpmfit and (los.) slmring cenificates
DIVIDENDS TO PERSONNEL (.)
DIVIDENDS TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS (-)

EARNINGS PER SUARE

Vii. PROFIT DISTRIBUTİON STATEMENT

Curreni Pedod Pdor Pedod
..

3lDecemberZOI6(9 3IDembor20l5
1. DISTRIBUTION OF CURRENT YEAR INCOME

1.1 CURRENT VEAR INCOME 18,112 11,4M
1.2 TAXES AND DUTIES PAYABLE 1.) (4,107) (2,697)
1.2.1 Cqporatc Tax (Income taz) (4,191
1.2.2 Income widoldinj___
1.2,3 Oıhcrtaxcs and dalle. (‘9 84 (2.697)

A. NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR(l.l.l.2) 14,005 8,787

1.3 PRIOR YEAR LOSSES t.)
1.4 FiRST LEGAL RESERVES t.)
1.5 OTHERSTAWTORYRESERVES(-)

B. NET INCOME AVAILABLE FOR DISTRJBUTION Iflfl4+I.5I_____________________ 14,005 8,787

1.6 FIRSTDIVIDENDTOSHAREHOLDERS(-)
1.6.1 ToOwnenofOrdinaıyShares
1.6.2 Ta Ownen of Nvileged Sisam.
1.6.3 TaOwnenofPefe,redShams
1.6.4 TaPmfitShanBonds
1.6.5 Ta Holden ofPm6!4Joss) Sharing Certificate,
1.7 DIVIDENDS TO PERSONNEL (-)
1.8 DIV1DENDSTOBOARD0FD1REa0RS(.)
1.9 SECONDDIVİDENDTOSHAREHOLDERS(-)
1.9.1 TaOwncnofOrdinaiyShares
1.9.2 TaOwnenofNviledSharea
1.9.3 ToOwnenofP,fenedShams
1.9.4 Ta Profis Sharing Bonda
1.9.3 Ta Holden ofPıofit and (Los.) SlmdngCenificates
1.10 SECONDLEGALR£SERVES(.)
1.11 STAWTORYRESERVES(-)
1.12 E)CTRAORDINARY RESERVES
1.13 OTHER RESERVES
1.14 SPECIAL FUNDS

IL DISTRIBUTION OF RESERVES

3.1 TOOWNERSOFORDINARYSHARES
3.2 TO OWNERS OF ORDINARY SHARES ( %)
3.3 TOOWNERSOFPRIVILEGEDSHARES

4 — -—______

IV. DIVIDEND PERSHARE
4.1 TOOWNERSOFORDINARYSHARES
42 39,QW NER Şfl9flD NAY SHARES(%J
4.3 TOOWNERSOFPRIVILEGEDSHARES

!12L2gQRŞJüŞŞıI — - -

(‘) As of flnancial statemenis preparation date, Banks General Shareholdcrs Meeııng have not yet been made, bence no decision has bcen taken on profit
distrihution.

(“) Delrred ıax incomtilexpense shown in oıhertaxes and duties not subjcct tü protit appropriation

The accompanyng noles are an integral port of these (mancini statemenLs.
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CONYENIENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLİCLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS ORİGINALLY ISSUED
İN TURMSH, SEE NOTE İ OF SECTİON THREE

PASHA YATİRİM BANKASİ A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish lira (“TL”) unless othenvise sıaıcd.)

SECTİON THREE

EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTİNG POLİCIES

BASIS OF PRESENTATİON

a. The unconsolidated financial statements are prepared in aceordance with the “Regulation on
the Principles and Procedures Regarding Banks’ Accounting Applications and Safcguarding
of Documents”:

The unconsolidated financial statements are prepared within the scope of the “Regulation on Accounting
Applications for Banks and Safeguarding of Documents” related with Banking Act numbered 5411
published in the Offlcial Gazette no.26333 dated 1 November 2006 and in accordance with the
regulations, communiqus, interpretations and legislations related 10 accounting and financial reporting
principles published by the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency (“BRSA”), and in case where a
specific regulation is not made by BRSA, “Turkish Accounting Standards” (“TAS”) and “Turkish
Financial Reporting Sıandards” (“TFRS”) and related appendices and interpretations put into effect by
Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (“POA”). The format and content of the
publicly announced unconsolidated financial statements and notes to these statements have been prepared
in accordance with the “Communiqud on Publicly Announced Financial Statements, Explanations and
Notes to These Financial Statements” and “Communiqu On Disclosures About Risk Management To Be
Announced To Public Uy Banks” and amendments to this Communiqu. The Bank maintains its books
in Turkish Lira in accordance with the Banking Act, Turkish Commercial Code and Turkish Tax
Legislation.

The unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in TL, under the historical cost convention
except for the financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value.

The preparation ofunconsolidated financial statements in conformity with TAS requires the use ofcertain
critical accounting estimates by the Bank management to exercise itsjudgment on the assets and liabilities
of the balance sheet and contingent issues as of the balance sheet date. These estimates, which include the
fair value calculations of financial instruments and impairments of financial assets are being reviewed
regularly and, when necessary, suitable corrections are made and the effects of these corrections are
reflected to the income statement. Assumptions and estimates that are used in the preparation of the
accompanying financial statements are explained in the following related disclosures.

The amendments of TAS and TFRS, effectiveness date is 1 January 2016, have no material impact on the
Bank’s accounting policies, financial position and performance. The amendments of TAS and TERS,
except TFRS 9 Financial lnstruments (2011 Version) wilI have no impact on the accounting policies,
financial condition and performance of the Bank. The Bank assesses the impact of TFRS 9 Financial
Instruments standard.
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PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT3İ DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless othenvise stated.)

EXPLANATİONS ON ACCOUNTİNG POLICIES (Continued)

k The accounting policics and valuation principles applied in the preparation of these financial
statements and valuation principles:

The accounting policies and valuation principles applied in the preparation of unconsolidated financial
statements. are determined and applied in accordance with regulations. communiqus, explanations and
circulars on accounting and financial reporting principles published by the BRSA, and in case where there
is no special regulation made by the BRSA, in accordance wiih principles in the context of TAS and
TERS. are consistent vith the accounting policies applied in the annual financial statements of the year
ended 31 December 2015. Aforementioned accounting policies and valuation principles are explained in
be low.

c. Explanation for convenience translation into English:

The effect of differences between accounting principles and standards set out by regulations in conformity
with BRSA Accounting and Reporting Legislation. accounting principles generally accepted in countries
in which the accompanying unconsolidated financial statements are to be distributed and international
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) have not been quantified in the accompanying unconsolidated
financial statements. Accordingly, the accompanying unconsolidated financiai statements are not
intended to present the financial position. results of operations and changes in financial position and cash
flows in accordance wiih the accounting principles generaliy accepted in such countries and IFRS.

İL EXPLANATİONS ON STRATEGY OF USİNG FİNANCİAL INSTRUMENTS AND FOREİGN
CURRENCY TRkNSACTİONS

The general strategy of the Bank of using financial instruments is to sustain an optimal balance beıween
the yield of the instmments and their risks. The most imponant fıınding source of the Bank k
shareholders’ equitv — intemal funding. in addition extemal funding including funding from repo
ransactions and borrowing from domestic and foreign tinancial inslitutions is utilised. Funds obtained
from internal and external sources are invested in high yield and quality tinancial assets and currency,
interest rate and Iiquidity risks are being kept within the Iimits following the asset-Iiability management
strategy. The curency, interest and liquidity risks of on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet assets and
liabilities are managed in accordance with the risk limits accepted by the Rank and the related legal Iimits.
Derivative instruments are mainiy utilised for Iiquidity needs and for mitigating currency and interest rate
risks. The position of the Bank asa result of foreign currency activities being heid at minimum leveis and
the exposed currency risk is followed within the determined eveIs by the Board of Directors by
considering the Iimits giyen by the Banking Law.

Foreign currency denominated monetaıy assets and Iiabilities are translated with the Bank’s foreign
currency bid rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Gains and osses arising from such valuations are
recognised in the income statement under the account of “Foreign exchange gains or losses”.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLİCIES (Continued)

111. EXPLANATİONS ON FORWARD TRANSACTIONS, OPTİONS AND DERIVATIVE
INSTRUMENTS

The Bank does not have any embedded derivative instruments.

Derivative instruments are classifled either as “Hedging Derivative Financial lnstruments” or “Trading
Derivative Financial lnstruments” in accordance with the “Turkish Accounting Standard for Financiai
lnstruments: Recognition and Measurement (“TAS 39”)”. Certain derivative transactions, even though
they provide effective economic hedges under the Bank’s risk management position, do not qua1i1’ for
hedge accounting under the specific rules in TAS 39 and are therefore treated as “Financial assets at fair
value through profit or Ioss”.

Derivative instruments are measured at fair value on initial recognition and subsequently remeasured at
their fair values. If the fair value of derivative financial instruments is positive, it is disclosed under the
main account “Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” in “Trading derivative financial
instruments” and ifthe fair value difference is negative, it 15 disclosed under “Trading derivative financial
liabilities”. The fair vaiues of the derivative financial instruments are calculated by using quoted market
prices or by using discounted cash flow models. Liabilities and receivables arising from the derivative
instruments are followed in the off-balance sheet accounts from their contractual values.

IV. EXPLANATIONS ON INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE

Interest income and expenses are recognised in the income statement on an accrual basis. The Bank ceases
accruing interest income on non-performing Ioans and, any interest income accruals from such ioans are
being reversed and no income is accounted until the collection is made. Oniy cash collections regarding
non-performing loans are recorded as interest income.

V. EXPLANATIONS ON FEE AND COMMISSİON INCOME AND EXPENSE

Ali fees and commissions income/expenses are recognised on an accrual bask, except for celain
commission income and fees from various banking services which are recorded as income at the time of
collection.

Fees and commissions expenses paid to the other institutions regarding financial iiabilities are considered
a component of interest expense of the related funding and are recognised as transaction costs and
recorded as expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Contract-based fees or fees received in return for services such as the purehase and sale of assets on behalf
of a third or legal person are recognised as income at the time of collection.
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EXPLANATİONS ON ACCOUNTING POLİCIES (Continued)

VL EXPLANATİONS ON FINANCİAL ASSETS

The Bank classifles and accounls ils financial assets as “Fair value through profit or loss”. “Available
for-sale”, “Loans and receivables” or “Held-to-maturity”. Sales and purchases of the financial assets
mentioned above are recognised nt the “settlement dates”. The appropriate ciassitication of financial
assets of the Bank 15 determined nt the time of purchase by the Bank management, taking into
consideration the purpose of holding the inveslment.

a. Financial assets al fair ;‘alue thruugh prufit ur luss:

Financial assets are classifled either as “Financial assets at fair value through profit or Ioss” or
“Tmding financial assets”.

Trading financial assets are either acquired for generating profit from short-term fluctuations in the
price or dealer’s margin. or are the financial assets ineluded in a portfolio in which a panem ofshort
term protit making exists independent from the acquisition purpose.

Sales and purchases of trading financial assets are recognised at the “settlement dates”. Trading
financial assets are initialiy recognised at fair value plus transactions costs and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair value. AlI gains and losses arising from these evaluations are recognised in
the income statemenı. Interest earned while holding financial assets is reported as interest income
and dividends received are included separately in dividend income.

Derivative financial instruments are treated as trading financial assets unless they are not designated
as hedge instruments. The principles regarding the accounting of derivative financial instruments are
explained in detail in related section.

b. Available-for-sale financial asscts:

Available-for-sale flnancial assets are defined as financial assets other than the ones ciassifled as
“Loans and receivables”. “Held-to-maturit assets” or “Financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss”.

Government bonds ineluded in the available-for-sale flnanciai assets are subsequently re-measured
at fair value. “Unrealised gains and losses” arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in the slıareholders’ equity as “Marketable Securities
Valuation Reserve”, unlil Ihere is a permanent decline in the fair values of such assets or they are
disposed ot When these financial assets are disposed ofor impaired, the related fair value differences
accumulated in the shareholders’ equity are transferred to the income statement.

Available-for-sale equity securitles that have a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair values can be reliabiy measured are carried at fair vaiue. Available-for-sale equity securities that
do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair values cannot be reliabiy
measured are carried at cost, Iess provision for impairment.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

c. Loans and receivables:

Loans and receivables are financial assets which are created by providing money, services or goods
tü a debtor. Loans and receivables originated by the Bank are carried initially at cost and subsequently
recognised at the amortised cüst vaiue calculated using the effective interest method. The expenses
incurred für the assets received as cüllateral are nüt considered as transaction costs and are recognised
in the expense accüunts.

The Bank prüvides general and specific prüvisiüns based ün the assessments and estimates üf the
management, by cünsidering the “Cümmuniqu Related to Principles and Prücedures ün Determining
the Qualiflcatiüns üf Banks’ Lüans and Other Receivables and the Prüvislün für These Lüans and
Other Receivables” published in the Offlcial Gazette Nü. 26333 dated 1 Nüvember 2006. Apart früm
specific prüvisiüns, the Bank has general Iüan Iüss prüvision within the scüpe üf the stated
regulatiüns.

d. Held-to-maturity financial assets:

Heid-tü-maturity financial assets are assets that are nüt ciassifled under lüans and receivables, with
fixed maturities and flxed ür determinable payments where management has the intent and ability tü

hold the financial assets tü maturity. Held-tü-maturity financial assets are initially recügnised at cüst.
Held-tü-maturity securities are carried at “amürtised cüst” net üf impairment using the effective
interest methüd after their recügnition. Interest income eamed früm held-tü-maturity financial assets
is reflected tü the statement üf incüme.

The Bank dües nüt have any held-tü-maturity financial assets. There are nü financial assets that were
previously classifled as held-tü-maturity but which cannüt be subject tü this classiflcatiün for twü
years due tü the violation üfciassificatiün principles.

YU. EXPLANATİONS ON IMPAİRMENT OF FINANCİAL ASSETS

The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is übjective evidence that a financial asset
a grüup üf financial assets is impaired. Where the estimated recüverable amüunt üfthe financial asset,
being the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted based ün the effective interest
method. ür the fair value ifone exists 15 lüwer than its canying value, then it is cüncluded that the asset
under cünsideration 15 impaired. A prüvisiün is made for the diminution in value üfthe impaired financial
asset and it is charged against the incüme for the year.

YIlI. EXPLANATIONS ON OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets and liabiiities are offset and the net amüunt is repürted in the balance sheet when the
Bank has a legaliy enfürceable right tü üffset the recognised amüunts and there is an intentiün tü

collect/pay related financial assets and liabilities ün a net basis, ür tü realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneüusly.

17



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED
İN TURMSH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are cxpressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unlcss olhenvise stated.)

EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

IX. EXPLANATIONS ON SALES AND REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS AND SECURITIES
LENDING TRANSACTIONS

Securities subject to repurchase agreements (“Repo”) are ciassifled as “Financial assets at fair value
ıhrough profit or loss”, “Available-for-sale” and “Held-to-maturity” according to the invesrment purposes
of the Bank and measured according to the portfolio to which they belong. Funds obtained from
repurchase agreements are accounted under “Funds Provided under Repurchase Agreements” in liabilities
and the difference between the sale and repurchase price is accrued over the life of repurchase agreements
using the effective interest method.

Funds giyen against securities purchased under agreenıents (“Reverse repo’) to reseil are accounted under
“Receivables from Reverse Repurchase Agreements” on the balance sheet. The difference between the
purchase and determined reseil price is accrued over the life of repurchase agreements using the “effective
interest method”.

X. EXPLANATIONS ON ASSETS HELD FOR RESALE AND FIXED ASSETS FROM
DISCONTINUED OPERATİONS AND LİABİLITIES RELATED WITH THESE ASSETS

According to TFRS 5, non-current asset ciassifled as heid for sale (or group of assets to be disposed) is
measured by the Iowest of book value or sales costs discounted fair value. An asset to be held for sale
asset (or group of assets to be disposed) it is necessary that, the related asset has to be commonly seen on
the sales of these kind of sales assets, it could be easiiy immediately sold in the frame of usual conditions
and it has to have high sales probability. For the high sales probability, there has to be a plan regarding
the sales of asset made by the appropriate management level and by the determination of buyers there has
to be an active program started regarding to completion of the plan.

Assets held-for-resale consist of tangible assets that were acquired due to non-performing receivables,
and are accounted in the financial statements in accordance with the “Communiqu Regarding the
Principles and Procedures for the Disposals of Immovable and Commodities Acquired due to Receivables
and for Trading of Precious Metal” published in the Offlcial Gazette dated
1 November 2006, No. 26333.

A discontinued operation is a pan ciassifled as discarded or heid for sales by the bank. Results regarding
to discontinue operations m-e presented individually in income statement.

The Basık has no discontinued operations.

XI. EXPLANATIONS ON GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets are measured at cost on initial recognition and any directly attributable costs of setting
the asset to work for its irnended use are included in the initial measurement. Subsequently. intangible
assets are carried at historical costs after the deduction of accumulated amortization and the provision for
value decreases. ifany.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTİNG POLICIES (Continued)

Intangibles are amortised over their estimated useful lives of three to five years using the straight-Iine
method. The useful life of the asset is determined by assessing the expected useful life of the asset,
technical, technologicai and other kinds ofobsolescence and ali required maintenance expenses necessaıy
to utilise the economic benefit of the assets.

The Bank expects no change with respect to accounting estimates, amortization period, amortization
method, or residual vaiue that wiil have signiflcant impact on the current or the following periods.

Computer software development expenses tlıat add to the economic benefit and extend the useful life of
the software are capitalised. These expenses are amortised over the remaining useful life of the related
intangible asset using “the straight-Iine method”.

XİI. EXPLANATIONS ON PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment is measured at its cost when initialiy recognised and any directly attributabie
costs of sening the asset in working order for its intended use are included in the initial measurement.
Subsequently, property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for
value decrease, if any. Depreciation 15 caiculated over the cost of property and equipment using the
straight-Iine method. The depreciation rates are stated below:

Offlce machine, furniture, ieasehold improvements and vehicles 3-10 years

The depreciation charge for items remaining in property and equipment for less than an accounting period
at the balance sheet date is caicuiated in proportion to the period the item remained in property and
equipment.

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated “recoverable amount”, it is written
down immediately to its “recoverable amount” and the provision for the diminution in value is charged
to the income statement.

Property and equipment are not subject 10 vaiuation such that fair value is presented in the financial
statements.

Gains and losses on the disposal of property and equipment are determined by deducting the net book
value of the property and equipment from its sales revenue.

Expenditures for the regular repair and maintenance of property and equipment are recognised as expense.
The capitai expenditures made in order to increase the capacity of the tangible asset or to increase its
future beneflts are capitaiised on the cost of the tangibie asset. The capital expenditures include the cost
components which are used either to increase the useful life or the capacity of the asset, or the quality of
the product or to decrease the costs.

There is no pledge, mortgage or commitment on the Bank’s property and equipments.

The Bank expects no change with respect to accounting estimates that have significant impact on the
current period or may have significant impact on the foliowing periods.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

XII1. EXPLANATIONS ON LEASING TRANSACTIONS

Assets acquired under finance lease agreements are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the “Iower
of the fair value of the leased asset or the present value of the amount of cash consideration giyen for the
leased asset”. Leased assets are included in the property and equipment and depreciation k charged on a
straight-line bask over the useful life of these assets. lftlıere is any diminution in value of the leased asset,
a “Provision for value decrease” is recognised. Liabilities arising from the leasing transactions are
included in “Financial Lease Payables” on the balance sheet. Interest and foreign exchange expenses
regarding lease transactions are charged to the income statement.

Operating Lease

Leases, in which the majority of risk and retum of propeny belongs to lessor, are ciassifled as operational
lease. Payments that are made under operational leases, are accounted in income statements on a straight
line basis during the lease period.

XIV. EXPLANATIONS ON PROVISİONS AND CONTINGENT COMMİTMENTS

Provisions and contingent liabiiities except for the financial instruments within the seope of the TAS 39
or the provisions recognised in accordance with the TAS 12 and TAS 19 are accounted in accordance
with the “Turkish Accounting Standard for Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”
(“TAS 37”).

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation asa result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic beneflts viU be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. The provision for
contingent Iiabilities arising from past events should be recognised in the same period of occurrence in
accordance with the “Matching principle”. When the amount of the obligation cannot be estimated and
there is no possibility of an outflow of resources from the Bant it is considered that ü “Contingent”
liability exists and it is disclosed in the relaled notes to the financial statements.

XV. EXPLANATIONS ON OBLIGATİONS RELATED TO EMPLOYEE RİGHTS

Obligations related 10 employee termination and vacation rights are accounted for in accordance with
“Turkish Accounting Standard for Employee Rights” (“TAS 19”) and are elassifled under “Reserve for
Employee Rights” account in the balance sheet. Under the Turkish Labour Law, the Bank is reqtıired to
pay a specific amount to the employees who have retired or whose employment 15 terminated other than
the reasons specifled in the Turkish Labour Law. The reserve for employment termination beneflts
represents the present value of the estimated total reserve for the future probable obligation of the Bank
arising from this liability.

According to TAS 19 that is revised by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority
wiih the Communique published in Offlcial Gazette on 12 March 2013 numbered 28585. in the calcıılation
of the employment termination benefit liabilities of the Bant the recognition option of the actuarial gains
and losses derived from the changes in actuarial assumptions or the differences between actuarial
assumpıions and realizations in the income statement has been eliminated which is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 Januaıy 2013. The earlier application of the revision is permitted in the
section of the transition and effective date of the standard and therefore the Bank has recognised the
actuarial gains and losses tlıat occur in related reporting periods in the “Statement of Income and Expense
ltems Accounted in Equity” and represented in the Prior Periods’ lncorne/ (Loss) item in the Shareholders
Equity section.

20



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED
İN TURKISH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in Ihousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless othenvise stated.)

EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

XVI. EXPLANATIONS ON TAXATION

2. Current Tax:

Many clauses of Corporate Tax Law No. 5520 (“Tax Law”) which are valid starıing from
1 Januaıy 2006, were taken into e[fect afler being published in the Official Gazette dated
21 September 2006 No. 26205. According to the Tax Law, the corpomte tax rate in Turkey is payable
at the rate of 20% since t January 2006. The corporate tax rate is calculated on the torni income of
the Bank afler adjusting for cedain disallowable expenses, exempt income (such as capital gains
derived from the sale of equity investments) and other allowances. No further tax k payable unless
the profit k distributed.

Dividends paid to non-resident corporations. which have a place of business in Turkey or to resident
corporations are not subject to withholding tax. Othenvise, dividends paid are subject to withholding
ta at the rate of 15%. An increase in capital via issuing bonus shares is not considered as profit
distribution and thus does not incur withlıolding tax.

Corporations are required to pay advance corporate tax quarterly ata rate of 20% on their corporate
income. Advance tax iş declared by the l4th and paid by the l7th day of the second month foilowing
each calendar quaner end. Advance tax paid by corporations which is for the current period is
credited against the annual corporation tax calculated on their annual corporate income in the
foiiowing year. Despite the oftset, if there 15 temporaıy prepaid tax remaining, Ihis balance can be
refunded or used to offset any other financial Iiabilities to the govemment.

A 75% portion of the capital gains derived from the sale of equity investments and immovable
properties held for at least two years 15 tax exempt, ifsuch gains are added to paid-in capital or heid
in a special account under shareholder’s equity for five years.

Under the Turkish Corporate Tax Law. losses can be carried forward to offset against future taxable
income for up to live years. Losses cannot be carried back to offset proflts from previous periods.

in Turkey, there 15 no procedure for a final and detinitive agreement on Iax assessments. Ta. retums
are required to be filled and delivered to the related ta oflice until the evening of the 2Sth of the
fourth month following the balance sheet date. üx retuns are open for Eve years from the beginning
of the year following the date of fihing during which period the tax authorities have the right 10 audit
tax returns. and the related accounting records on which they are based. and may issue re-assessments
based on their findings.

b. Deferred Tat

The flank calculates and accounts for deferred income taxes for alI temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carıying amounts in these financial statements
in accordance with “Turkish Accounting Standard for Income Taxes” (“TAS 12”). in the deferred
tax calculation, the enacted tax rate, in accordance with the tax legislation. 15 used as of the balance
sheet date.

Deferred tax iiabihties are recognized for alI resulting temporary differences whereas deferred ta
assets resulting from temporary differences are recognized to the extent that it 15 probabie that future
ıaxable profit wilI be available against which the deferred tıx assets can be utilized.

The caiculated deferred tax asset and deferred tax Iiability are presented as net in these financial
statements.

Deferred ta effects of the transactions accounted under equity are ineluded in equity.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

e. Transfer Pricing:

The article 13 of the Corporate Tax Law describes the issue of transfer pricing under the title of
“Disguised profit distribution” by way of transfer pricing. “The General CommuniquĞ on Disguised
Profit Distribution by Way of Transfer Pricing” explains the application reiated issues on this matter.

According to this Communiqud, The Bank is required to fili out Transfer Pricing form, if the
taxpayers conduct transactions ilke purchase and saie of goods or services with the related parties as
velI as the methodology of the transfer pricing.

XVII. EXPLANATIONS ON BORROWINGS

Trading and derivative financial liabilities are valued with their fair values and the other finaııciai
liabilities are canied nt “amortised cost” using the effective interest method.

The Bank utilises various hedging techniques to minimise the currency, interest rate and liquidity risks of
its financial liabilities.

XVIIL EXPLANATIONS ON ISSUANCE OF SHARES CERTIFICATES

Transaction costs regarding the issuance of share certificates are accounted under shareholders’ equity
after eliminating the tax effects. Dividend payments are determined by the General Assembly of Bank.

The Bank has not issued any share certificates.

No dividend payments were announced after the balance sheet date.

XIX. EXPLANATIONS ON AVALIZED DRAFTS AND ACCEPTANCES

Avalized drafts and acceptances shown as liabiiities against assets are inciuded in the “Offbalance sheet
commitments”. The anak has no avalized drafts and acceptances shown as liabillties against assets.

XX. EXPLANATIONS ON COVERNMENT GRANTS

As of 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the Bank has no government grants.

XXI. EXPLANATIONS ON PROFIT RESERVES AND PROFIT DISTRIBUTİON

Retained earnings as per the statutoıy financial statements other than legal reserves are available for
distribution, subject to the legal reserve requirement referred to below. Under the Turkish Commercial
Code (“TCC”) the legal reserves are composed of first and second reserves. The TCC requires first
reserves to be 5% of the profit until the total reserve is equal to 20% of issued and fulIy paid-in share
capitai. Second reserves are required to be 10% of alI cash profit distributions that are in excess of 5% of
the issued and fuily paid-in share capital. However holding companles are exempt from this application.
According to the Turkish Commercial Code, legal reserves can oniy be used to compensate accıımulated
iosses and cannot be used for other purposes uniess they exceed 50% of paid-in capital.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTİNG POLICIES (Continued)

XXH. EXPLANATIONS ON EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing net profit for the year to the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period concerned. Earnings per share disclosed in the income statement are
calculated by dividing net profit for the year to the weighted average capital outstanding during the period
concemed.

in Turkey, cornpanies can increase their share capital by making a pro-rata distribution of shares (“bonus
shares”) to existing shareholders frorn retained eamings. For the purpose of eamings per share
computations, the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year has been adjusted in
respect to bonus shares issued without a corresponding change in resources by giving thern a retroactive
effect for the year in which they were issued and for each earlier period. Where the number of outstanding
shares increase due to distribution of bonus shares after the balance sheet date but before the release of
the financial statements, earnings per share computations are performed based on the revised average
nurnber of shares.

XXIII. EXPLANATIONS ON RELATED PARTIES

Parties defined in Articie 49 of the Banking Law No.541 1, Bank’s senior management and Board
Mernbers are deemed as related parties. Transactions regarding related parties are presented in Section
Five.

XXW. EXPLANATIONS ON CASH AND CASH EQUWALENTS

For the purposes of the preparation of staternent of cash flows, “Cash” includes cash, effectives, and cash
in transit. purchased cheques and demand deposits including balances with the Central Bank; and “Cash
equivalents” include interbank rnoney rnarket placements and time deposits at banks with original
rnaturity periods of less than three months.

XXV. EXPLANATİONS ON SEGMENT REPORTİNG

information on operational fields vhich are determined in accordance with the Bank’s organisational and
internal reporting structure and the requirernents of”Turkish Financial Reporting Standards on Segrnent
Reporting” (“TFRS 8”) is disclosed in Section Four.

XXVI. RECLASSIFICATİONS

in order to be consistent with the presentation of current period financial staternents, certain
reciassifications are made. The Bank has reciassifled TL 433 purchases of intangibles under ‘other’ line
of “Net Cash Provided From / (Paid For) lnvesting Activities” section which was previously reported
under ‘purchases of property and equipment’ line in the cash flow statement dated 31 Decernber 2015.

XXVII.EXPLANATİONS ON OTHER MATTERS

None.
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(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turklsh Lira (“TL”) unless othenvise stated.)

SECTİON FOUR

INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL POSİTİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT

1. INFORMATION ABOIT SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY İTEMS

Equlty Capital amount and capital adequacy standard ratio 15 calculated in accordance with the “Regulation on
Measurement and Assessment ofCapital Adequacy Ratios of Banks” and “Regulation on Equities of Banks”.

The current period equiry amount of the Bank k TL 248,081 while its capital adequacy standard ratio k 53.85% as
of3 1 December 2016. Calculations of3 1 December 2015 have been made in the framework ofrepealed regulations
and equity amourn is TL 232,480 whiTe the capital adequacy standard ratio is 91.75%. The capital adequacy ratio
of the Bank 15 far beyond the minimum rate determined by the related legislation.

a. İnformation about total capital items:

Cıırrent Amounls Subject ü
Period 31 Pre—Basel ili

Dcccmber treatment Before Ihı

--—_______ -----------———---——-—---—--———___ 91%
COINION EQU ITV TIER t CAPITAL

Paid-up Capital 255.606F
Share issuc premiums

Retained eamings

_________ ______ ____________

. 324:
Accumulated other comprehcnsive income and other disclosed reseıwes which detned in the TurkisN
Accounting Standards Il

Proft

Net protit of the period 14,0051

Protli of the previnus vears
Sharns aequired free of charge from subsidiaries. aflhliales and jointly cuntmlled partnerships am

cannotbcrecogniscdwithin prorıt for the nod
-— — . — —

Common Equity teri capital hefore regulatory adjustmenls 269340
Common Equity [ler! capital: rcguhııory ndjustments

Pmdential valuation adiustments
The sum of the net Ioss tbr the curreni period and the previous years vhich could not be absorbed by
the rernined earninp and losses rncouniscd in eqwtyrnaccdanccwııhTAs — 24,682
Improvement costs Ibr openting leasing 67
Goodwill (net of related trn< IiabiIi’)
OıherintanibIesother than rnoŞc-servicin rihts 588 58
Dekrred ıax assets that reiy on lüture pmlhtability excluding those arising from iemporary dilTerence!
(netofre!ated tax Iiability)
Cash-flow hedge reserve

Shortfall of provisions to expecıed tosses

Securitisation gam on sate

Gains and losses due to ehanges in own credit risk on fair valued tiabilities

Deflned-benetit pension fund net assets

lnvestments in oıı shares -

Credits extended contrary to the tbunh paragraph of Anicles 56 of the Banking Law -
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(Amounts are expressed in Iimusands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless othenvise stated.)

İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL POSİTİON AND
RİSK MANACEMENT (Continued)
Investments in the capitai of banking. tinancial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of
regulatoıy consolidation, net ofeligible short positions, whcre the hank does not own more than I0°ı
of the issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)
Signiiicant investments in the common stoek of banking, financial and insurance entities that are
outside the scope of regulatoıy consoiidation, net of eligibie short positions (amount above ıo°A

threshold)
Mortgage servicing rights (amount above 10% threshold) -

Deferred tax asseis arising from temporaıy differenees (amount above 10% threshold, net of related

!kj.gçJ
Amount exceeding the 15% threshold (as set otU in the paragraph 2 of the Provisional Article 2 of

PJ9fl9Y1!!L__ .

of which: signiflcant investments in the common stock of flnaneials -

of which: moflgage setwicing rights

of which: defirred tax assets arising from temporary difterences -

National specific regulatory adjustments which shali be determined by the Hoard -

Regulatory adjustments applied 10 Common Equity Tier 1 due to insuflicient Additional Tier 1 am
Tier 2 to cover deductions -

Total regulalory adjuslmcnts to Common equity Ticr 1 25,337
Common Equity Tier 1 capilal (CETI) 243,003

ADDITİONAL TIER 1 CAPI’FAL
Prefened shares that are not included in Common Equity Tier 1 capital and related shares issuc
premiums -

Eligible capital instruments and relevant share issuc premiums timi am approved by the Agency
Eligible capital instmments and relevant share issue premiums that are approved by the Agency (Fo
the purposes of the Provisional Article 4 of the Regulation on Hanks’ Own Funds)

Additional Ticr 1 capital hefore regulatory adjustmcnts -

Additional Tier 1 capital: rcgulntory adjustmenls

Investments in own Additional Tier 1 inslmments -

Reciprocal cross-hoidings in Additional Tier 1 instmments -

Investments in the capital of banking. tinancial and insurance entities that are outside the seope ol
regulaıory consoiidation. net ofeiigibie sho positiom. where the bank does not own more than 1
of the ksucdcornm share capital of the entity (amcuni above 10% ihreshoid)
Signilicant investmenls in the copital of banking. finaneiai and insurance entities that are outside
the scope of reguhtory consofldation( et of eligible shoıl positions)
National specific reguiatory adjustments which simi’ be delermined by the Board -

Regulatory Adjustments wlıich ıvili be deducted from Tier 1 capital during the transition

.— —

—-..——.

Goodwill and other intangible assets and related deferred tıx Iiabilities ‘vhich wiiii not dedueted from
Common Equity Tier 1 capital for the purposes of the first sub-paragraph of the Provisional AfliciL
2 of the Reguiaıion on Hanks’O vn Funds (-)

... ..

—

et deirred ta asseUliabiiity which is not deducted from Common Equity 11cr 1 capital for th
purposes of the sub-paragraph of the Provisional Articie 2 of the Regulation on Hanks’ Own Funds
(—)
Reguiatory adjustments appiied to Additional Tier 1 due to insufiicient Tier 2 to cover deductions -

Fotal regulatory adjuslnıcnls to Addilional Ticr 1 capital -

rotal Additional Tier i capital -

fotal Ticr 1 capital (Ticr 1 capilal Common EquityTier t capital + Additional ‘ileri capiIaI 233,610
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INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL POSITION AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

TIER 2 CAPITAL
Eligible capital instruments and relevant share issue premiums that are approved by the Agency
Eligible capital instnjments and relevant share issue premiums that are approved by the Ageney (For
•posesoflheProjonaiAfticle 4 of the Reguladon qP±°pşL
rmvislons (Amounts stated on the 8th ağicle of Regulation on Equities of Banks) 4,471

ricr 2 capital hefore regulatory adjustments 4,471
Ticr2 capital: regulatory adjustmcnts

lnvestments in own Tier 2 instmments

Reciprocal cross-holdings in Tier 2 instmments
lnvestments in the capital of banking, financial and insumnce entities (hat are outside the seope ol
regulatory consolidation. net ofeligible sho positions, where the bank does not own more than 10°/
of the issucd common share capital of the entity ountabovetheiO% Lhreshokfl(-)
Significant investments in the capital banking, linaneial and insurance entities that are outside th
scope of regulawry consolidation (net of eliible short positionsH) -

‘Jational specific regulatoıy adjustments which shall be determined by the Board

Fotal regulatoıy adjustments ta ‘11cr 2 eapital

Fotal Ticr 2 capital 4,471
Fatal Capital (The sum ofTier 1 capilal and Tier 2 eapital) 248,081

,_JıjŞjm

ofTieriCaphahındTier2CapitaHTo(alCapitai)
Cmdits extended contrrny to the provisions of Articles 50 and 5! of the Banking Law
Ponion of the suni of the banks’ real estate net book values, which is in exccss of tifly per cent ol
their own funds and net book values ofthose of merchnndise and real estate which have to be acquire
due to their receivables and disposed of pursuant to Anicle 57 of the Banking Law. whieh eannot bt
disposed of despite the lapse ofaperiod of five years since the date of such aequisition

—- -

National specific regulatoıy adustments which shall be determined by the Board

Regulatory Adjustments which wiil be deductcd from ‘Fotal Capital during the transition

- ........,

Investments in the capital of banking. financial and insurance entitles that are outside the seope ol
regulatory consolidation, net of eligible sho positions, where the hank does not own more than 1004
of the issued common share capital of the entity (amount above the I0%threshold) which wilI na
deducted from Common Equity 11cr 1 capital. Additional her 1 capital. Tier 2 capital for tht
purposes of the first sub-paragraph ol’ the Provisional Article 2 of the Regulation on Banks’ Own
Funds (.)
Signiflcant investments in the Additional Tier 1 capital and ‘11cr 2 capital of banking. linancial and
insurance entities that mc outside the scope of regulatoıy consolidation, net of eligible short position -,
(amount above 10% threshold) which wili not deducted from Common Equity Tier 1 capital.
Additional Tier 1 capital. Tier 2 capital lbr the purposes of the first sub-paragraph of the Provisiona
Artiele2 of the Regulation on Hanks’ OwııFundsN . —____________

Signifieant investments in the common stock of banking. financial and insurance entities ıhat aret
outside the seope of regulatoıy consolidalion. net of eligible short positions(amount above I0’V
threshold), mortgage servicing rights (amount ahove 10% threshold). deIrred tax assets arising
from temporary diflrences (amount above 10% threshold. net of related tax Iiability) which vil! no
deducted from Common Equity Tier 1 capital lör the purposes of the first sub-paragraph of th

ation on Banks Own Fund
_ — —_____________

OWN FLfNDS
Total Capilal (The 50m ofTier 1 capital and ‘11cr 2 capital) 248,081
Total Risk \Veighted Asscts 460,7 16

CAPITAL ADEQtJACY IUTIOS

Common Equity ‘rier 1 Capital Adequaey Ratio (%) 52.96%
Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratlo (%) 52.88%
Capital Adequaey Ratio (%) 53.85%
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INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCIAL POSITİON AND
RİSK MANACEMENT (Continued)

_______

BLIFFERS

Institution specific butTer requircment 0.625%

of which: capital conservation bulTer requirement (%) 0.625%

ofwhich: bank speciflc counlercyclical buflbr requiremcnt (%)

The ratio ofAdditional Common Eguity Tier 1 capilal ‘vhich wiil be calculaled by the first paragrapi
of the Article 3 of Regulation on Capilul Consenution and Counlercyclical Capital bullers to Risk

Amounts below the thresholds for deduçtion (before risk weighting)

SignWıcantinvestrnentsh thecornrnonstockofflnancials____________________________

Mongage senicing rights (net of related ta liabiliiy)

Defermd tax assets arising from ıemporaıv ditterences (net of related tax Iiability)

Applicahle eaps on the inçlusion of provisions in Tier 2 capilal

Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tie, 2 in respecı of cxposures subject to standardised approach (pnor lo
ıphcationofp)
:ap on inclusion ofprovisions in Ticr 2 ender sbndaıdiscd approach

Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect ofexposurcs subject to intemal mtings-based approach (prio -

çpppauonofcap) -

:ap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 ender internal ratings-based approach

Capital insirumenis subject 10 phase-out arrangements (oniy applicahle between 1 Jan 2018
and 1 Jan 2022

Curmnt cap on Additional Tier t capiıal inslnjmenls which subject to phase out arnngements in the
Pmvisional Anıcle 4 of the Regulation on Danks Own Funds
mount cxcludcd from ATI duc 10 e3p (excess over cap afler redemplions and maturides) “hich

—- -______ 2
Currenı cap on Tier 2 capilal instmmenls “hich subjcct to phasc oul arnngements in the Pmvisional
\nic!c 4 of the ReuIaIion on Banks Own Funds .1
Amount excluded from T2 dee 10 cıp (excess o’cr cap afler redempIions and maturities) which
aibjccı ‘ü Provisional Anicle3of the Regulaıiou on Hanks’ Oı, Funds

( Aniauşits it, (his caluttni represeti(s the anioiın(s of‘fena ıl,aı arI siıhjec: la fransiıion proWsions in accordance i’flhi ilie ıeniporoş Arlides of Regutorions
,cganh.ıg ta clianges an Regidatian on Eqi,irv af Banks and roket, tura consideranon al the end ofwansilian process.
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INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL POSİTİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

31 Decemher
2015()

CONINION EQUIT’ TIER 1 CAPITAL
I’aid-in capital tü be Entitled for Compensalion aile, Ali Credilors 255,000
Share premiam -

Share cancellation profil
Legal resenes 324
Inconte passed on ta sharehoider,’ equtlv in accordance with TAS
Profit

Net income for cunent petiod
Ptiorperiodprofit -

provisions for possıble hsks
Honus shares of Associates. Subsidianes and Joint.Ventures
Common Eguitv Tie, t Capital Before Deduçtions 255324
Deductions Eroin Common Eguifl’ Tier t Capital
Loss excess ofrescn’cs and Ioss passed onto sharchoLdeı5’ cquıty in aceordance wnh TAS (-) 23772
Leasehold lmprovemcnts t-) 26
Gc,odssill and other intanuıble assets and related deferred ta tiabilities (-) 468
Net deferred taç tncome’expense t.) 99
Shams noncompliant svüh anictc 564 of the üw (-J
Direct or indtrect insestments on Hanks own Common Tier t Capital (.4
Total net tong pasıtion exccedtng 0% of Hanks Common Ttcr t capttal. belongıng to ınvtments on own funds of banks and
financiat instııutions ittat am not consoltdatcd. ‘tıltı ü sharcholdtng of 10% and beiow
Totat net long posttion eccedıng 0’ of Hanks Comnıon Ticr 1 capital. heittaging to tnvestments on own lünds of hanks and
financiat instttuıions ilmi am notconsolidatcd. stith a shareholding of 10% and above
Rtghts of provıding mongage sen içe exceeding 10% of Common Tier t pital (-1
Deferred taç assets baned on lemporan ditterences csceeding 10% of Common Tki 1 capital (4
Balances in acçordance çıth the temponıv anicic 212 of Regutation on Sharehoiders Equity of Hanks exceeding 15% of
Common Ticr 1 capital t-> -

Fçccst amount arising from total net tong posinon belonging 10 invesıments on Common Tie, t Capital of banks and flnancial
institutions that art not consohidated. wıth ü shamholdtng above 10% -
Excess amooni arising tom dghts ofprovidıng mongage senice (4
E’cccss amoonı arisıng from deferred ta assets based on temporaıy ditTerences (.1 -
Other iıems detennined hy board (-1 -
Deducıion amoonl 0mm Common Tie, t Capila) in case ofshorıagc ofaddittonal Tie, t capital OF supplementan’ capila] (-)
Total Deduetions From Common Eguitv Tie, ICopital 25.365
Tolal Common Eguitv Tier ICapital 229.959

ADDITIDNALTIER 1 CAI’ITAL
Premimns ofpnvilege sham capııal not included in Common Equilv Tie, 1 capital
DebI tnslrtmcns which is seen appropriale by coq,omlıon and premiums in accordaace whO, tbese insınımcnts tlssued aile,
1.1.2014)
Dehi tnsınmenLs which it secn appropriaıe by corpomıton and premiums in accordance ssidı ihese insınsmcnts tlssuad before

1 1,20131
Additional Tier 1 Capilal Before Deductions
Dedtıctions Erom Additionial Tier 1 Cı.pitııl
Daect or ındırcet ınveslments nhıch bank provıdes for ta om’ addıltonal Tıer t capnal (.1
Il’. eçrL-ed pan of Common ter Icapital of bonk fron the sum of pannership shareon hanks and ilnancıat inslıtulions hat am
not consolıdaıed, with a sharehotdıng tesa Utan ttt% (-1 -
t0 i escevd pan of Common Tier 1 capitat ofbank from the 50m ofpartnershıp shen on banks and financial institutions that am
not consotıdated. wiıh a sharehotdıng of 1<1% and above (-)
Other ttems detennined by board t-)
Dcduction amount ofaddiııonat core capital in case of there is not enough additional core capitat or supptementan capital (-1 -
Totol Deductions From Additionul Tie, t Capital
Totol Additionot Tier 1 Capitıtl
Deductions Eroin Tier 1 Capitol -
Non-deducıed Commnn Tier t capitat pan tn accordance vtth detürred ta expense and goodwhll impainncnt and other ıntangıbic
flxed assets svhich is ın temporan’ articte 211 ofRegutatıon ofSharrholders’ Equity offlanks. (.)
Non deducted Common Tie, t capitat pan in accordance with net deferred tax income/expense which is in temponry anicle 211 of
Regulation ofSharehnlders Eguıtv ofBanks. <.1 149
Tutsi Tier t Capitıjl 229,810
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INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

ii Decembşr 20l5()

sL:PPLEMENTARY CAPITAL
DehI inslruments which is seen appropdate by corporation and premiums in accordance wiih these ınstnımeots (Eponed anar
112013) -
Debı instmmcnts ‘hich is seen appropdate by corporation and premiums in accordance wiih these instnımems (Exponed before
112013) -
Pledged sources to benk from shareholden hich is used for share capital incrcasing of bank
General Provisions 2.670

Supplemcntaıy Capital Benin Deductlon, 2.670

Deducüons Erom Supplcmentan Capital
Direct Dr indırecı invcsbnents which bank providt for iıs’ own supplemenıaıy capita) (-)
I0%esceed pan of Common Tier t capiıai of hank fiom the sum of partnership share on banka and financial instiıutions hat
ute not consolıdated, “ith ashareholding lcss than 10% (-) -
10% excced pan of Common Tier 1 capıral of bank from the sum ofpannetship share on banks and financial instilutions that
am not consolıdated, sith a siıamhniding of 10% and aboe (-)
Other items determined 1w board 1-)

Total Deduçlion, Eroin Supplcmentary Capittıl
bini Suppkmen(ary Capital 2,670

CAI’I’[AL 232,480

Loans exlended being noncompliant with anicles 50 and 51 of the Law (.)
Net book vaioes of propenies owned. exceedıng 50’ • of hanks’ cquity and propcflies, and trade goods overlaken ın exchange for
loans and receivables that should be disposed within tive ycars in accordance vith anicle 57 ofthe Law, but not yet disposed )
tnvcstments to Ioans extended 10 hanks, financial inscıtutions Idomesuc and abroad) and quatitied shareholders, tike secondary
subordinated oan and debt instmments purchased from these ınstitulıons issued, like pdmary and secondaıy subordinated ban
(‘t
Deducüon from equity in accordance with 2nd anicbe of2oth item in Reguladty ofMeasurement and Valuation ofCapital
Adequacy of Banka (.)
Other accounts determined by board ()
Non deducted pan ofcommon equity tierl , additionat core and supplementaty capita! in accordance with temporazy articlc 2/1
of Regulation ofshareholders’ Equity of Banka which is 10% cxceed pan nfCommon Tier t capital ofhank from the tom of
pannersltip share on hanks and tinancial instilotions that arc not consolidated, with a shareholding Iess than 10% (-)
Non deducted pan ofcommon equity ticrl, additional corn and supplemcntaıy capital in accordance with temporaıy article 211
of Regolation ofShareholders’ Equity ofBanks which is 0% cxceed pan ofCommon Tier t capital of hank from the sum of
partnershipshare on hanks and tinanciat institutions thaı are not consotidated, with a shareholdiog of 10% orabove(-)
Non deducted pan ofcommon equity (jeri generating hom eceed amount genemting from investments 10 Common Tier 1
capitals of pannership share on hanks and tinanciat tnsıtıutions that are not consotidated. with a shareholding of 10% and above,
temporuıy diWercnces ofdekrred tax income and the right ofotTering motigage seıwices explained in the kat and 2nd paıagraphs
of tcmpom articlc 2 of Regulation of Shareholders’ Eguiıv of Banks t—)
SIIAREIIOLDERS’ EQUITY 232.480
Amounts BrIow Overrun Amounls bn Applied Reducing Proredures 382

Amount generatıng from tong posıtion of ınveslments tü sharehutders’ equity and pmnership share on hanks and flnancıal
insttıutions that are not cor.solidated, ‘1th a sharcholdiog Iess ıhan 10% -

Amount ger.erattng from tong position of investments to sharehutders’ equity and panncrshıp share on iwıks and financiat
insiituttuns that ute not consolidated. wtth a shareholding of 10% or above
Amount generating from heht of ofTering mongage senice -
Amount generating from ternporan ditrerences of defered income tax income 382

t j Toto! cepHesi /uu hcen caicoiaied in ıccorda,ıco inih 1/tc Rcgıdatioııs rt’grn-dnıg la c-hanges on Regıdaıion on
Eqour of Banks’ eğeclhefrorn dore 31 .tarcIı 20)6. the tnfornıution giren in the priorpehod cohmtn has been
co/cıdakd porsuant toformer regtdanon.

b. Information about instruments that wiil be ineluded in total capital calculation:

None.

e. Information about debi securities issucd that wiil be included in total capital calculation:

None.
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İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL POSİTİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

d. The difference between Total Capital in the table above and Equity in the unconsolidated balance
sheet mainly arises from the general provision. in the calculation of Total Capital, general
provision is taken into consideration as Tier 11 Capital. Besides, in the calculation of the Total
Capital. improvement costs for operating leases followed under tangible assets in the balance
sheet, intangible assets and other items defined by the regulator are taken into consideration as
amounts deducted from Total Capital.

İİ. EXPLANATİONS ON CREDIT RİSK

a. The Bank takes into account the Banking Law as far as the limits applied to a single obligor or a risk
uroup k concerned. Limits are determined to avoid sectorai concentration, and the compliance to
these limits are monitored on transaction bask.

Regarding daily credit and security transactions. compliance to limits and concentrations are
monitored ad repoded by the risk management unit. Besides. the compliance of credits to their limits
are followed by operations. marketing and intemal control uniis.

Credits and other receivables are re.evaluated at least once a year by the credit aliocation unit.
Borrower and facility ratings are calculated by using models specifically developed for this purpose.

lncluding the necessarv documents, credit allocation activities are aiso subject to controis by the
intemal control unit. which is independent from business units.

b. The Bank classifles its loans and receivables to related groups and calculates specific or general
provisions in accordance with the “Regulation on the Procedures and Principles for Determination of
Qualifications of Loans and Other Receivables by Banks and Provisions to be set aside” published in
the Ollicial Gazette dated 1 November 2006. no.26333 and by considering other regulations and
explanations announced by BRSA. in these regulations. credits that do not qualify for the Third Group
in terms of days per due. are classifled as “late collection”. alI the receivables within the third. fourth
and fifih groups are classifled as “lınpaired”, regardless of whether the accrued interests and interest
like burdens on the bonower are added to the principal or whether the credit has been refinanced or
not.

e. Bank does not carr any fonvard or option positions or similar positions based on other agreements on
the organized markets.

d. The Bant as an aciive participant in the national and international banking market. compared to the
financia activities of other financial institutions, is not exposed ta high volumes ofcredit risk, which
may necessitate mitigation through futures or options. As credit risk increases, usage of such derivative
instruments may be relevant.

e. The Bank does not lıave any non-cash loans that were transformed into cash. Ifsuch Ioans exist. they
are going to be applied the same risk weight as the cash loans.

t. The Bank does not have any credits that were renewed or agreed ona new payment plan. lfsuch loans
exist. they are planned to be monitored separately by the risk management unit in the monthly reports.

The discrimination of credit risk is performed through borrower and facility rating systems. No risk
discrimination is made via maturity.
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CONVENİENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED
İN TURKISH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are cxpressed in ıhousands oFTurkish Lira (“TL”) unlcss othcnvise staled.)

İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL POSİTION AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

g. The Bank does not have any credit transaction abroad.

h. The Bank, as an active participant in the national and international banking market, compared to the
financial activities of other finajıcial institutions, is not exposed to high volumes of credit risk.

i. The share of the greatest 100 and 200 cash ban customers within the total cash loans portfolio is 100%
and 100%. respectively (3 1 December 2015: 100% and 1 00%).

The share of the greatest 100 and 200 non-cash ban custorners within the tom! non-cash Ioans portfolio
is 100% and 100%. respectively (31 December 2015: 100% and 100%).

The share of the greatest 100 and 200 cash and non-cash ban customers within the total cash and non
cash loans portfolio in the on and otTba!ance sheets is 100% and 100%. respectively (3! December
2015: 100% and 100%).

j. General provision for the credit risk is TL 4,471(31 December 2015: TL 2,670).

k. The Bank does not have any specific provision (31 December 2015: None). Cash loans are commercial
loans, ciassifled as standard credits.

1. The total amount of risk the Bank is exposed to, without taking into account the mitigation effects. and
avemge of the risks grouped based on different risk classes and types are shown in the taNe below:

_______

31 Decemher 2016 31 December 2015
Corrent Averagel Currenı Avcrngc

I’eriod Risk Risk: Period Risk Risk
Amount’> Amount( .4rnounI> Amounıt”t

Risk Classiflrations______ 635,789! S0o,693 388363r 280.916

Condjtional and unconditional rcceıablcs from Central GovemmenlsorCentral Banks 35267. 18.923 22.347 8.694

Conditional and unconditional recmvables ftom Reional_ManaaemernorLocalcoçcmments 1 -

Conditional and unconditional receıvablcs Itom Admınislmtive Unils or Non.commercial Ventwes . .1

Conditional and unconditional receıvablesItomMulıılaleraIDevpmcnlBanks .

Conditional and unconditional rtceıvables from lnıemational Organızations
.

Conditional and unconditional receivables fromBanksundBrokeraeeCorporation 350.969 250.4891 187,623: 180.165
Conditiona) and uncondhıonalcoşomıereccwaNes

—

——________ 245.948 217.310 1fl.73T_47fl
Conditional and unconditional retail receivables — — - -

Condıtional and unconditional coIlatemIızcdbvreaIstatemortşesreccivables 865
perfonninreceivables

—____________________________________________

Receivablesdeflnedinhi3hriskcate9orybyBRSA
:—__:_ —

Securities collatemliıed bv mortages . -

Ştaqj__
- . -

2:i!!P!*rN corporate reccivabiesfromsanksandBrokerasecomorations 7.668 4.478
lnvesıments in nature of Cailcecive Investmenc Iünds . . . —

Equity security investmencs . . . -

Other receivablcs 5.937 8.627 5.656 5,284

(9 The flures represcnt total risk amounls belöre Credit Risk Miligation and after credit conversion Ihctor.

( * 9 Average risk amounts re calculated as arithmetical average of monthly amounts of relevant yer.
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CONVENtENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS ORIGİNALLY ISSUED
İN TURKISH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT3İ DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless olhenvıse stated.)

İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL POSİTİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continned)

n. Anaiysis of maturity-bearing exposures according to remaining maturitles

Risk Classifications (Curnut Period) —_________ Time la

1 monthl 1-3 monchs 3.6 months 6-12 monlhsE Ova 1 yeaI”

Condıttonal and unconditional receivables from Central
GovemmentsorCentral Banks -— 33871 1232 161 -

Conditional and uncondıtional reccıvables 6am
RegionalManagement or LocalGovemments - - — - -

Conditional and unconditional receivables from
Administntive Units orNon-commercialventures . .‘ . -

Condihonal and uncondinonal receivables 6mm
Multilateral DevepBanks - . -

Condflional and uıwonditinnal receıvables 6am
international Omanintions - -E - . -

Condilionai and uncondılional reteivables 6mm Banks
and BrokemgCoj2ornıion 34,532 35,560: 30,567 96,637 53.673

18,389 28,594 56,512 47.031 95,422
Canditıonal and unconditional retail receivables . . . -

Condıtional and uncondıtional collatemlized by real
estatemortaaesreceivabİes . . -

-

ReceivabIesdeIinedinhihjisk cateojybyflRSA . -

SecuritiescoIlateraIizedbymortaes .

aQp9j!Lq9L___ -

Short-term receivables and short-Ierm corporate
receivablesfrornflanks anBrokemecofporations 3,725 -

lnvestments in nature of Collective lnvestment funds . -

jtyşcuntyınvestments -

çjyLş ..._ .

-

Total (9 l90,520 69,329 87.2401 143,668 155,032

(9 Includes risk amounts hefore the elbet of crediı risk mitigation and after the credit cooversion factors,
( 9 Inciodes also undistributed amounts

Ç İÇ!! .-_______
. Tim e oN aturiiy

1 1 month 1-3 mooths 3-6 monthsl 6-12 months Over 1 yeaı”>
Condılıonal and unconditinnal receivables 6mm Cenıral
Covemments or Central Banks 12.728 256 - 9,363
Condilional and unconditional receıvables 6mm
ReionaIManşrnentorLocaLGovernrnenıs - . - -

Condıtional and uncondıtional receıvabks ftom
Administrative Unfts or Non-commercial Ventures . . . . -

Conditıonul and uncondıtınnal receıvables 6cm
Multilateral Development Banks — . - -

Condıtional and uncondıtıonai receıvabies 6am
international Orpnızations . - - -

Conditional and uncondıtional receivables fram Banks
and Bmkemge Corporation 21,342 103,478 25,360 14,290 23,153
Conditional and uncondionalporntereceivabIes 51.009 22,657 — 5,220 14379 79.072
Conditional and unconditional retail receivables - - - -1 -

Conditional and tmeonditional collatemlized by real
estaw mongages receivables . . - -

Non-performing receivables 1 -I______________
Receivables definesi in hijj category by RRSA -i - - -I
Secudhes coliatemlized by mongaQes L -E -i
sa,cftj,ns .- . . - -

Shod-tent receivables and shon-term co.pomte
receivables fmm Banks aopıpıj_ - - -

Investments in nature of Callectivc Investment funds . . . -I
Odwrreceivables 5j88 - 468
Total (9 90.261 126,391 30,580 38,4321 102.693
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS ORIGİNALLY İSSUED
İN TURMSH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER 20İ6
(Amounts are cxprcsscd in ıhousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unlcss othcnvise siated.)

INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITİON AND
RİSK MANACEMENT (Continued)

o. The Bank has no particular agreement wiih a credit rating ageney.

p. There is no credit rating for issuer or issue for the items not included in trading accounts where there
is no credit ratings.

q. Risk amounts according to risk weights

1 1 1 Dedortions
Period %0 %20: %50: %100: %!5O %12501 (rom Eg

88.622! 252i39 283,O20 5.004 -1 l,Ç4Ş
IAmounts afler Credıt Risk Mmeat,on 2I.230 88.622! 252j39E 278.394! 5.004 .i 1.048

Dtductions
isIWdghts(dorPeriodj_%O%20: %5k%l00 %200 %1250 fromEgui
İ4mountsbcforeCrtıt Risk Mıtıgatıon_ 22.777 118.815’ 66.8231 1813561 2,0!

_____________

742
[AmounalfCrcdit Risk M,iati — 22.777 1 18.8ltT6.8201 ı7Şj1 2.0J . 732

r. Movements in value adjustments and provisions

Opening Provision for r rrovision ! Olber Closing

___________________fij!işrs_JyıL

RevenakLMjusiments_BaIancf
Speciflcprovisions L___ -L__L_
General provisions ! 2.670! 1.801! -! -! 4.471

s. Miscellaneous Information 1w major sectors and type of counterparties

in accordance with TAS and TFRS;

Impaired loans; By the end of the reporting period. not more than 90 days overdue ot impaired due
to credibiiity. For such ioans. “Specific Provisions” are calculated within the scope of Provision
Reguiation.

Oıerdue Loans; By the end of the reporting period U ıo9O days due but not impaired ioans. For
such loans. “General Provisions” are calculated within the scope of Provision Regulation.

The Bank does not have any impaired ioans ot overdue ioans as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

t. Risk involved in counter-cyclicai capital buffer calculation

None.

37



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLİCLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY İSSUED
İN TURMSH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATİRIM BANKASİ A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amoonıs are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless oıherwise stated.)

INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL POSİTION AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

İli. EXPLANATİONS ON CURRENCY RİSK

The Bank’s foreign curency position is managed within the limits set by legislation and the Bank.
The bask principle in foreign currency risk management is not tü be exposed to currency risk.
Accordingly, the exchange-trading risk positions are not allocated tü the limit. banking accounts as of the
currency by creating a matched asset-liability slructure is aimed tü provide natural protection. The Bank
uses derivative financial instruments such as forward foreign exchange contracts and curreney swaps for
hedging purposes in foreign currency denominated transactions.

Bank’s methodology of digitising the foreign currency position includes the use of standard method when
calculating the capital adequacy ratio and application of internal stress tests/ sensitivity analysis.

The Bank’s publiciy announced foreign exchange bid rates as of the date of the financial statements and
for the last five business days prior to that date:

USD EURO

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015

3.5)92 2.9181 3.7099 3.1838Bid Rale

1. Days bid rate 3.5318 2.9084 3.6939 3.1921
2. Day’s bid rate 3.5329 2.9157 3.6901 3.2006
3. Day’s bid rate 3.5 135 2.9123 3.6711 3.1904
4. Day’s bid rate 3.5041 2.9187 3.6639 3.1968
5. Day’s bid rate 3.5077 2.9262 3.6647 3.1969

The simple arithmetic average of the Bank’s foreign exchange bid rales for the last thirtv days preceding

the balance sheet date:

LJSD KURO
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2016 2015

Arithmetic average -31 days 3.4935 2.9177 3.6840 3.1770

İnformation on currency risk of the Bank:

The following table shows the foreign currency net general position of İlie bank on the basis of
foreign currencies. in aceordance with GAAP, assets which are indexed tü foreign currency are
shown on financial staternents as TL rather İhan foreign currencies.

Assets which are indexed to foreign currency are considered as foreign currency item in calculation
of foreign currency net general position. in uccordance with the “Reguiation on Calculation and
Implementation of Foreign currency net general position/equity standard rate by banks on
consolidated and non-consolidated basis”. derivative financial assets. hedge derivative financial
assets. deferred tax asset and prepaid expenses in assets; generai provisions. deferred ta Iiability,
derivative financial iiabiiities. hedge derivative financial Iiabilities and Equity in liabilities are not
taken into account in calculation of exchange risk. Therefore, there are differences between foreign
currency assets and liabiiities total inciuded in tabie below and those inciuded in balairne sheet.
Actual foreign currencv position of the Bank is shown in the table below in financial and economic
context.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLİCLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCIAL STATEMENTS ORİGİNALLY ISSUED
İN TURKISH, SitE NOTE 1 OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are exprcssed in thousands of Turkish Lira (‘TL”) unless othenvise staled,)

INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL POSİTİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

ıLŞpL_OtherEC Tabii
31 December 2016
Asseis

tash and Cash Equivalents (Cash in vault, ctlectiveness,
money in translbr and cheques purehased) and Balances
with the Ccntraj Ban kofiurkey

—

4,455 15,177 19,632
Dua from Banks 5,916 4,198 2 10,116
FinancialAssetsat Fair Value Throtşh ff?,!12ı:2
MoneyMarkeLPiacemenls ———,,..—.-—.—.—.—— — -

Available-for-sale Financial Assets 6.674 6,674
Laans (‘) 53,117 84,453 . 137,570
Investments in Associates, Subsidiaries and JoinL Ventures .

HeId-lo-malurity Investrnents —

Hedg,rivativeFi11ancial Assets . -

Pmperty and Eguipment -

Intangible Assets
— . -

OtherAssets 45 - 45
btal Assets 63,488 103,873 6,676 174,037

LiabiIities
Bank Deposits . -

Foreign Currency Deposits - -

Funds Fmm lnterbank Money Market . . . -

Funds Bormwed Fram Other Financial Institutions 48,444 90,419 6,660 145,523
Marketable Securities Issued

-

Miscellaneous Payables .1 1.425 1,425
Hedging Dedvative Financial Liabilities -l
Other Liabilities

. ..,_:1 ._jj 36
Total Liabilitles 48,449 91,875 6.660 146,984

Net On-balance Sheet Positian 15,039 l1,998 16 — 27,053
Net OIT-balance Sheet Position

— -.

(3.Ş) (18,359)
Dedvative Financial Assets (‘9 3,59 3,519
Derfvative Financial Liabilities<”> 14,840 7,038 21,878

Non-CashLoans 27,170 38,576 — 1,713 67,459

31 December 2015
Total Assets 15.055 89,355 10,234 114,644
Tabii Liahilities 6.409 75,171 . 81.580

. ..._flM dŞ ._J!1
Na9JEPiçŞkçç!p.ş1!.__,. (ıŞr!)

._............._..._:
(!Ş,.Ş?.)

Derivative Financial Assets 8,437
.

8,437
Dcrivative Financial Liabilities (“) 16,875 18,384 -I 35,259

Non-Cash Loans 24,101 41,563j l,661 67330

Foreign cuntıley indexed bana arnounting İn TL, 31.990 (31 December 2015 TL 23,836) art inebuded.
Fonvard purcltase/selI ,nnsacıion, and swaps recorded onda comminmcnts art included.
Eair vabuc oftrading derivative tnnaactiona amounııng İn TL 281 presented under “financial asseıa as (air valuc ıhrouglı prufls ot losa’ account
it not ıncitıded.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLİDATED HNANCİAL STATEMENTS ORİGİNALLY İSSUED
İN TURMSH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRİM BANKASİ A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT3İ DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are cxpresscd in thousnnds oFTurkish Lira (“TL”) unless othcnvise stated.)

INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLATED FİNANCİAL POSİTİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Foreign Exchange Sensitivity Anaiysis

The effects (excluding tax effects) of 10% weakening of TL against the foreign currencies below at 31
December 2016 and 2015 on the equity and profit or Ioss are presented below. This analysis assumes that
alI other variables. in particular interest rates, remain constant.

—

eLon!’ t ş_______JWcct Eüjy_,

1 31 Deecmber20l6 1 iı flecembcr2Ol5 31 Decemhcr20l6 31 December20l5

USD D%ıo 1 848 (411) 848 — (411)

EUR 1 %10 20 20 20 20

IV. EXPLANATİONS ON İNTEREST RATE RİSK

Interest rate risk is the risk that expresses the effects of fluctuations in the market interest rates on the
value increaseİdecrease of the Bank’s interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities.

The interest rate sensitivity ofAssets, Liabilities and Off-balance sheet items is carefully followed up by
the treasuıy department of the Bank. Assets and Iiabilities which are sensitive to interest are managed in
such a vay Ihat minimizes the interest risk.

The interesı rate risk of the banking items is measured legally in accordance with the “Regulation on
Measurement and Assessment of Standard Shock Method on the interest rate risk arising from banking
accounts”. and this legal limit is monitored and reported monthly. based on this measurement.
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CONYENİENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGİNALLY İSSUED
İN TURMSH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in lhousands of Turkish Lira (‘TL’) unless othençise stated.)

INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL POSITION AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity of the Bank:

a. Interest rate sensitiviiy of assets, liabilitles and off-balance sheet items based on repricing dates

Non
(‘p10 1 1-3 3.121 5 Year Interest

4LPççÇ!___ ‘!J! ! !hşl._kLüşrns’!ı’n. çyjg
4_!ç!ş.____________ —-

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Cash in vault.
eiTectieness, money in transfer and
cheques purchascd) and Balances with the
Central DankofTurkey 19.579

. -: .
. 11.857 34.436

Duefromflanks 22,530 . . 6,614 29.144
Financial Assets ot Fair Valuc Through
IrojjtjLoss — -______ 281 281
Monev Market Placements 15.133 15,133
Available-for-Salefinancial Assets 3.724 12.779 4.0351 . - . 20,538
Loans 178.777 86.269 128.7511 10.073 - . 403,870
HeId-to-Matudtvinvestments 1 -i . - - -

OtberMsets(’) -: .
. 6.955 6.955

Total Asscts 224,610 114,362 132.786! 10,073 . 28,426 510351

Liabilitita ——

BanIcDp,qşts - -

Other Dep —- —

— —.

Funds Fmm lnlerbank Money Market 15963 - - 15,963
MiscellaneousPavables - - - L454 1.454
Marketable_Securities lssued 37.239 - .; 37.239

Funds Honowed Prom Other Financial
Instiıulions 34.281 9.171 138.445 191.897
Otber Liabilities (“) -

- 500 1.603 - - 261.701 263.804
Tolal Liabilities 97.983 10.774 138.345! -‘ 263,155 510457

BoianeeSheetLongPosition - 126.6271 103.688 -HW£731 - 230388
Balance Sheet ShoğPosilion

, -I -I <5.)__ 1 - (22> AN9
OrnbalanceSheetLongvosition

- -: — -ı -ı 1 - - —_____

Ofl’-balance Sheet Short Position -
- -I -I -p - -

Tolal Posilion ‘i67’ l6isğğf (5659)!10,073P -. c23429)f:

Ptoperay and equıpmenr. ıntangıtte .zcr, and non-üırcrcn beanng nsets in arter arter, and rai tasarı art prcıerrr. dindar ‘Noa-Intcnesa bcüıng cntanm afOrtar Aa,.tn irna
Slınchniderı eıu,ıy. pra naınnı, na ,-ınrerest beannt liabririje, in attı,, tatilin,,, and tat tatil ay la prr,enlcd ender Orta, L,abilııie,’ in hc ‘ t4on-lnıaai Ocanng colunan
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CONVEMENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLİCLY ANNOUNCED

UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS ORİCINALLY ISSUED

İN TURKISH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTİON THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.

NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS

AT3I DECEMBER 2016
(Amoonıs ait expressed in thousands oFTurkish Lira (“TL”) unless olhenvise slated.)

INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCIAL POSITİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continucd)

!

Nuri
. t’p to ı: 1-3 3-12 5 Year Interes(

il Decemher 2015 %Ionth Munths Months 1-5 Yearandover Dearing Total
Açis_______ —_________

Cash (Cash an \‘ault. Eflecuves,
Money in Transit Cheques Purchased)
and Balances uith The CBRT t I,772 - -p -ı 89l 12.663

- 21.342 47,357
Financial Assets at Fair Value
ThrouglaProfiULoss - 604 - - - - 604
Interbank_Monev Market Placemenıs -1 - -1

-

Available-lör-Sale Financial Asseıs 2561 - 9363
-

9.619
Loans 105,6831 41,488 52357 2,164 44,0521 245,744
Held-to-Maturitv lnvestmenıs -l - -, - - - -

OtherAssets() -l -i - - 6,418 6,418
Total Asscts 143,726 42,092 61,720 2,164 44,052 28,651 322,405

Liabilitles
Uank Pçpp.şş_,____________ - - - - - -

Other -

Fun sFmm y Market - - - -

- -
- tao 100

Marketable Securities Issued - - - - - - -

Funds Borrowed From Other
Financial Institutions 9,125 - 21.086 41.100 - - 71,311
Oıher Liabilities - - - -

- 250.994 250,994
Total Liahilitics 9,125 21.086 31,100 - 251,093 322,405

134.601 42.092 40,634 - 44.052 - 261379
Balance Sheet Short Position - (38,936) - (222,443) (261.379)
Oflbalunce Sheet Lon Position - - -

-

og-baıance Sheet Short Position - - - - - - -

Tolal Posilion 133,601 42.092 40,634 (38,936) 43.052 (222.443) -

P,opcny and equipmenı. in(angible .a.w ..ıd .mn-inı.r,.i baing nuu in odıa .ua. rıd as ın prts.nııd mader “NaııIntcraa bcn,ng coIumn ofoıhcr Aaeıı in..
Shanholdcr, cqaııy, pru’isiong, nonİnıenı bo,nng lınbılınos ii nıher IibiIiıin wd la Ii.bılity ii prnented aad., “Otber U,bıl,ıia’ na it. Nan’Inı.r,sı Bv.rmg’ cnlunt.
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CONVENİENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS ORİCİNALLY ISSUED
İN TURMSH, SEE NOTE İ OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thoosands cf Turkish Lira (“TL”) unlcss otherwise stated.)

İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL POSİTİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

b. Average interest rates for monetary financial instruments:

31 December 2016 EUR°/ USD°A JPYŞ TL%
sseIs

Cash (Cash in Vault. Efteciives. Cash in
Transit. Cheques Purchased) and Balances
wiih the CBRT - 0.75 - 5.31
Due From Banks 0.10 1.49 - 9.41
Financial Assets al Fair Value Through
rmfluLoss - -;_____________

Interbank Money Market Placements . . 9.69
Available-for-Sale Financial Assets -1 .

- 1020
Laans 3.8M 432 13.65
Held-to-Matujy Investments

—_________ -L
Liabilities

Bank Depcsits . . -.

Other Deposits ..

Funds Fmm Lnterbank Money Market . . . 8.77
Miscellaneous Pa)]es J
Marketable Seeurities Issued — -: . 11.73
Funds Bormwed From Other Financial Inst. 1.79 3.02 . 11.01

EUR 0/4

10.95
8.80

12.28
FleId-to-Mawj»Invesınıents .

Jahilitic, 1 1
Bank Deppsits -i

- -1 -
Otherfleposiis -1 .‘ -
Funds Fmm Interbunk Money Market . . . 9.79
MiscellaneausPayables - -
Marketable Securities lssued .
Funds Bonowed From Other Financial inat. 2.00 3.25 10.75

11 December 2015
isseta

Cash (Cash in Vault. Ellectives. Cash in
Transit. Chcqucs Purchaed) and Balances
with the CBRT
Duc From flanks
Financial Asseıs al Fair Value Through
PmliUhoss

i.Mo Market Placemenis
Available-for-Sale_Financial Asseis
Loans

USD °/

0.99

—1
48oı 4.82

-in 0/ TL °A

10.60
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CONVENİENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLİCLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS ORİGİNALLY ISSUED
İN TURKISH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATİRİM BANKASİ A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT3İ DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are exprcssed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unlcss othenvise stated.)

INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL POSİTİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

e. Economic value differences resulted from interest rate instabilities calculated according to
regulation on measurement and evaluation of interest rate risk resulted from banking book as
per standard shock method:

Current Period Shocks Applied Cains/Equi(y•
fype of Cj•nçy ...üüW ÇaşşL.,_____
T.L
T .._.

2.7_ 1.08%
USD — (+) 200 bp 965 0.39%

P ŞP . U3.QPğ
..LlL..,.____ (+)200bp

YJL__ .

IgIAL(tqçg1iyç..şhçş)__________ ...._____________ ‘4 —— 0.76%
TOTAL (for positive shoeks) (3,053) (1.23%)

Prior Period Shocks AppIiedI
!ypçÇjzçpsy. . (+1- basis
TL

______________ ________

(+) 500 bp4 (1,974) 0.85%)

___ ______

A:)400bpi 1,687 (173%
USD

. __Jt99iw..L htŞ
USD - __j)200p (946) 041%)
SiR — J+)200bp4 — — - 003%
EUR (-) 200 bp 0.00%
TOTAL(forneativeshochsj — ————. .,,

TOTAL (for poshive shoclö) (594) 0.26%)

d. Total unrealized gains or Iosses, total revaluation inereases
and contribution included in capital:

As of3l December 2016, The Bank’s portfolio does not have private equity investments, publicly
traded shares and other share equities (31 December 2015: None).

Gains/Equity
Losses/Esuit)

with the amount of their primary
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İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL POSİTION AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

V. EXPLANATİONS ON EQUİTY POSİTİON RİSK

The Bank does not hold equity position as of 31 December 2016(3! December 2015: None).

Vİ. EXPLANATİONS ON LİQUİDİTY RİSK

a) İnformation on risk capacity, responsibilities and structure of liquidity risk managcment,
reporting of Iiquidity risk at bank, Iiquidity risk management including how Iiquidity risk strategy,
polley and implementations communicates wi(h board of directors and business units:

Liquidity risk is the risk occurdng asa result of non-availability of suflicient cash on hand or cash inllow
to meet cash outflows in a timeiy manner completely as a result of imbalance in cash flows. Treasury
department manages the Iiquidity of the Bank daily and informs assets and liabilities committee weekly
about the Iiquidity level of the Bank. Treasury department is responsible for planning Iiquidity
management. taking measures and informing the senior management of aforementioned issues.

The Bank forms its assets and Iiabilities in balance not to create a negative gap on cumulative basis in
maturity segments.

in accordance with the “Regulation on Measurement and Evaluation of Liquidity Adequacy of Hanks”
entered into force afler published on Offlcial Gazette dated November 1. 2006 and numbered 26333 by
BRSA. weekly simple average of total liquidity adequacy rates related to primaıy maturity segment and
total Iiquidity adequacy rate related to secondary maturity segment cannot be less than 100% while weekly
simple average of foreign currency liquidity ratio related to primary maturity segment and foreign
currency adequacy rate related to secondary maturity segment carmot be iess than 80%.

Treasury department manages the liquidity of the Bank daily and informs assets and liabilities committee
weekly about the liquidity level of the Bank. Treasury department is responsible for planning liquidity
management, taking measures and informing the senior management of aforementioned issues.

Financial planning and control department is legally responsible for measuring and reponing of liquidity
risk. Stress test applied to Iiquidity position and calculation of liquiditv coverage rate k performed by
Risk Management Department.

Risk Management Department monitors related unit’s activities and repons to the Senior Management
monthly.

b) Information on centralization grade of liquidity management and funding strategy and its
functionality among Bank and its afihiates:

There is no structured liquidity management requiring centralization between bank and its afflhiates.
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İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCIAL POSITION AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

c) Information on funding strategy of the Bank ineluding policies related to diversity of funding
sources and periods:

The main funding sources of the Bank are provided by domestic and foreign banks, repo transactions,
money market transactions and issued marketable securities and diversification ofaforementioned sources
are made in order to minimize liquidity risk. Financial lnstitutions Department carries out studies which
are required to relate supplying of long term foreign source.

ç) Information on Iiquidity management based on currencics forming at least 5% of total liabilities
of the Bank:

Almost alI the Iiabilities of the Bank consists ofTL, USD and EUR and equities mainiy forming the TL
sources.

TL Iiquidity of the Bank is managed through funds provided from domestic and foreign banks via repo
transactions made in BIST using high quality (premium) securities.

TL and foreign currency cash flow of the Bank in scope of Balance sheet management is monitored
separateiy. Risk Management Unit reports to ALCO weekly and Board of Directors ona monthly basis.

d) İnformation on liquidity risk reduction techniques

Liquidity limits are determined in order to keep the risk regarding Iiquidity risk in defined Iimits and to
monitor Iiquidity position. The aforementioned Iimits have been determined in accordance with
“Regulation on Measurement and Evaluation of Bank’s Liquidity Adequacy” in Risk Limits document
and approved by Board of Directors.

e) Disclosure regarding use of stress test

At least one of the following liquidity stress tests related to issues mentioned below is applied monthly
and result of the related test is reported to Board of Directors by Risk Management Unit.
- Negative influence of economic crisis occurring in domestic finance markets on the Iiquidity

of the bank.
- Negative influence of global crisis on the Iiquidity of the Bank.
- Negative influence of a problem occurred within the Bank (abuse, fraud. reputation risk etc.).

Threshold ofweekly and monthly liquidity rate for stress tests which shall be applied for above mentioned
scenarios 15 taken into consideration as 80% for foreign currency assets/liabilities and as 100% for total
assets/I iabi 1 ities.
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İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL POSITION AND
RİSK MANACEMENT (Continued)

1) Information related to emergency and unexpected situation plan for Liqnidity:

“Emergency and unexpected situation plan for Liquidity” is approved by the Board of Directors and
established in order to manage possible liquidity crisis and required actions for losses which can occur in
extraordinary conditions are determined with preventing mechanisms and liquidiry squeeze scenarios.
The scope of the aforementioned plan is to pre-determine applicable scenarios, measurement of liquidity
risk and the actions which shall be taken towards those risks.

g) Liquidity ratios realized in the current period

The liquidity ratios regarding first and second maturity tranches are presented below:

221

327

377

556

95

116

167 587

87 279

HntMudWTranchft.1 1 SecondNurTrnche(thiyJ_

FO ir FC+TI

31 December 2016 r>
yjrg%)

Ma’cimum t%)

Minimum (% 144

First M.turity Tnnche (VcekIv) S.cond

Fc ir FC+Fl

3İDecember2OIjLi --_____________ -

vcraRe(%) 4.008 3.178 2.157 2.748

Maximum(%) 22.221 21.685 54.473

Minimum (%) 120 390 82 382

() Monıhiy unconsolidrned Iiquidity ralios for the last Ihree months ineluding the reponing period are accounted in the tables above
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INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL POSITİON AND
RİSK MANACEMENT (Continued)

h) Liquidity Coverage Ratlo

Referring to the BRSA’s announcement dated 29/12/2014, No: 30223; it is announced that development and
investment banks’ consolidated and unconsolidated liquidity coverage ratio viIl be applied as 0% until 2017
according to paragraph 5 ofarticle 4 of Regulations About Hanks’ Liquidity Coverage Ratio Measuremeni.

Current rıod.3Lpecmb!oı(s.j. — Total smount whicb k not Total nmoont which k .pplicd
- !k!___

TL+FC FC TL+FC FC

iligh.ouaIitjJqijy Asscts (İlLA) —-

...______________
23.5191 10.381

Csısh Ou(flows

2Rcalperson ÇŞ !‘!ŞŞ__ . -

3 Stablc ascts . . -

4 Lo,.ver Stıble asscts -

58,280 20,695 58.280 20,695

6Çperaüornflassets ————.,-—,—_______

LNa______
8 Otherjuniordebt 58.280 20,695 58,280 20.695

9 Secured Dcbts

10 Other Cash Outtlows 42.322 27.499 17,104 11.803

22 L2....... 293 1,339

12 Dehts Itom Structured ünancial instruments .

13 Paymeot commitments tbr debts to tinancial markets and oıher uff
balance shect liabilıties 42,029 26.160 16.811 10,464

14 Revocablc oIT-halance sheet other liabilitles and other contracıual
liabilıties notflhsıandintoanyconditions —-————----—-— .

-

hırrcvocalediiomllyrevocableoff.balanceshcetliabdities 136,167 26,344 13.617 2.634

I6TOTAL CASII OUTFLOWS 89,00! 35,132

CASII INFLOWS

llSecuredreccivabks
-(________

18 Unsecured reçeivables________________________________________ 217,074 6.727 150 i94 5.992

19 Other ça5hıntlows 3 155 1 155

2OTOTAL CASII INFLOWS 217.0751 6,882 —— 150,895 6,147

._________________________________
jjııppjçdnnt

21 TOTAL İlLA S’rOCK 23,519 10381

.IPTL NET CASHOUTFLOWS(

23 LIQUIDIÜ COVERAGE RATION (%3 105.70% 35.62%

(‘yflıe pjğ of 1Db1 cash inflows -hich cxceeds 75% of total cash outt1os is not beina taken into accoum durma the calculatıon of relaıed umounts

(“3 Nionıhly simple arithmetic avernce of ‘eekIy unconsolidated liquiditv coverage ratıos for the thırd quancrof 2016 are calculaıcd.
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İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

i) Breakdown of assets and İiabilities according (0 (heir remaining maturities:

: Up (t, 1 (-3 3.12 5 ear and
.._____________________

Over Unciassifled j) Total

33 Drembcr 2016
Asss

Cash (Cash in Vault, Effecıives, Cash in
Transit. Cheques Purchased) and Balances
vith the CBRT 3.857 19.579 . . . . . 34.436

Due From Hanks 6,614 22,530 -1 . 29.144
Financial Msets at Fair Valuc Through
ProfluLoss . - 281 . 281

Inlerbank Monev Market Placemcnts
.

15.133 1 1 .. 15.133

Available-for-Sale Financıal Assets - 3.7241 6.105 4.035 6.6741 . .. 20.538

Loans - 118.886 47.486 172287 65.2111
.

403,870

Held-to-MatuHlv Invıments . .
- . —________

OtherAsscls ()_________ 4,078 . . . 2,877 6.955

Tolıj.,!e!,..__._____ 21,471 168,797 699Ş 176,322 71,885 - 2,877 5jQ,j

Liahililles
BankDepoşs__,, .

OthrDtşosits - . -

Fu dsFrom lnte1kjjpçyej_ 4C81 9,171 138,445 - 191,897
- 15.963 -

-

Markelable Securiiles Issued 3739 - - - - . 37.239
Funds Borrowed From Other Financial 1
Instilutions 1 - h453j - 1,454

OtherLiabflitiesLa____________ 3,417 5,467 3.106 25l 263,804
•.][otı,1P J•,2Z7

kq[41!LÇı!.p.______________________ ....1ŞtÇ4 Şİi 7ŞŞ5

N.e 911:H .

Financial DerivativeAsseis . 24.108 - . 24,108

Financial Qeryyj1jjjeş_____ - - (25.154)
_:

. (25,154)

!-.!‘ .L______________ . 176 2,006 78,820ı - 26.044 90.864 197,910
JlDercmr QjŞ.

——

iblisi Asscb 22.2331 100,954 56,531 83ğjŞj 13,307 44.052 2.333 322.405

Total Lıabilities 0.2721 14,431
-

41300 - 235,533 322,405

....Mq!..!xÇ!p_.._ .__ Şd12j£75z) A1,Qş
—

(23Ş99) -

1 .1 2,628 41 -j
-

Financial Denvative Asseis - 42,568 3j351 -1 -1 -
- 16,103

Financial Derkative Liabilities . (39.940) <J,794) -1 -I -l (43733)

Non-cash Losus (**9 -! 3,788 159 14.7151 4.4031 223501 81.5791 126,995

(‘1 .Aascts Ihal ait necessaiy for banking a:tivıiies and ilmi cairn be Iiquidalcd in ilie shon-irrnı. strh as propcnv and cqutpmcnc. iniangıhlc asseis. associalcs
and aiıbsidiadrs. slalio,an slocks. prcpaid cxpciıses and bana onda folbow-up. am classiiird in iliis column.

1 Slıartholdas cquıı.. prn isions and commissıons culiceted in advance sa presenicd uader Oıh:r biabıliiıes ilan in the Unclassiflcd cabunrn
(‘‘9 üsler cfguarnniees wi±ota a deflned naiuriiv art prcscnied undcr Lınclaasili:d column.
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INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCIAL POSİTION AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

j) Breakdown of contrnctual cash outflows of financial liabilitles according to their remaining
maturitles:

Uptol
CePeriod ——________ — m onih i-3months 3-I2months JŞ_yçpgş Over 5 yün
Liobilitles

Pppş!!ş_.__
Funds borrowed from other ünancial inst. 44.302 9.208 143,181

Epğ!ftJp1çykı2ppyp 15,968 . -
nanciaIkasingpynbIes —. -

Marketoble securities issued 37,500 —
Cunent accounts ofcustomers 3.9171 -I -I
Totl 101,687! 9,2081 133,1811

Uptol
Pder Pedod month 1-3 months 3-12 months l-5veanOver5 yean
LiabiIUics
Deposits
Funds borrowcd from othçr tjnanciaiinst. 9.140F 21.468! - l3,39I
Funds from inıerbank money market -! -:

BorrowerFunds . -‘
Currenı accounts of customers 10.272
Total 19,412 -! 21,468 133911

k) Brcakdown of derivative instruments according to their remaining contractual maturifles:

The Bank’s derivative transactions according to their contractual maturities are in the table below as
of3l December 2016:

! Uptol Syeorsand
Current Period month 1-3 Months 3-I2Months i-SYear ahove
Fonvard - -. 27.713 -.
Swop - -. 21.549 - -
ulus - - -! -! -

9P!10fl5 - -. -l -i
Other - - -! -1 -
Tabi - -. 39,262 -I -

Uplol . Syearsand
PHor Pedod month 1-3 %Ionths 3-12 Nlonths 1-5 enr[ ahove
Fonvard 2.009 7.629 - - -

Şp_______________________
-—

Futures -I - - - -

Optians ‘f -

Other - - - -
Total 64,443 7,629 18,065 - -
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INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL POSİTİON AND
RİSK MANACEMENT (Continued)

Vİİ. EXPLANATİONS ON LEVERAGE RATİO

Unconsolidated leverage ratio was realized as 35.1% (31 December 2015: 54.8%). The increase
occurred in the on-balance sheet assets and off-balance sheet transactions led to a change in leverage
compared tü the previons period. Regulation has been linked to the provision of the minimum
leverage ratio of 3%.

.___---__

uınd

Asset On The Bahınce Shcet
Assets on the balance sheet (excluding derivative financial instruments and oan
derivativesJnciudinucoliatera!s) 4! 309.195

(şs4qd
.. ..

Total risk amooni Ibr assets on the balance sheet 480.311 308.458

Derivalivc Financial lnstruments and Loan Derivalives

Renewal cosı of dcrivaıive linancial nstrumenls and oan derivatives 161 498

Potential credit risk amount of derivative linancial instnjments and ban derivatives 236 238

Total risk amount of derivative financial instruments and oan derivatives 397 736

—

Risk amount ot’ financial transaclions 6± sccuritics er goods warnnties (excludin
those in the halance sheet) 152 -

Risk amount arising from intermediated transaclions . -

imal risk amcunı oftinancinLLmnsactionswiIhsecuriliesoroodswarmntics 152

Oft-the-flabance Shcct Transactions

Gross nominal amount of ıhe olT-thc-balance sheet transactions 209,940 108.645

fl -

Total risk amoont tör oIT-the-balance sheet transactions 209.940 108,645

Ç3pjıd J1JJk

Çqr9pj!j 47_
Total risk amount 690.800 417,839

LeveşgcRalio

Leverage ratio 35.1% 54.8%

* Arithmetic average of last three months including reporting period.
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İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL POSİTİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

YIlI. EXPLANATIONS ON THE RİSK MANAGEMENT

Notes and explanations in this section have been prepared in aceordance with the “Communiqud on
Disclosures abouı Risk Managernent to be Announced to Public by Banks” that have been published
in offlcial gazette no 29511 on 23 October 2015. Since Intemal Rating-Based (IRB) approach is not
applied, tables that have to be prepared within the scope of IRB, are not presented.

a. Banka’s risk managemcnt approach

Effective risk management constitutes one of the most imponant competitive strength of the Bank. Risk
management system is assessed as a critical process which includes alI uniis starting from the Board of
Directors level.

General strategies regarding Bank’s risk managernent are giyen below:

• Effective risk management within the Bank’s risk profile based on materiality: imphementing a
centrahized risk framework that inctudes alt major risk areas.

• Managing existing and potential risks from the beginning through forward looking risk strategies,
policies and procedures. models and parameters,

• Applying a risk-focused management approach in the strategic decision process.
• Complying with ait national risk management requirements. where the Bank operates.

The Bank’s Board of Directors has the ultimate responsibihity for sening-up and monitoring the efflciency
of such a risk rnanagement system. The Board of Directors manages the risks through Risk Management
Committee (RMC). RMC is responsible for the development of risk pohicies. measurement of risks and
deterrnination of methods to manage thern. setting up of appropdate risk limits and their monitoring. Ali
the risk policies of RMC are written and integrated with the Bank’s long ıerm strategy.

The Board of Directors fulflis its monitoring responsibiiity through the Auditing Cornrnittee. the
Executive Risk Committee. the Credil Comrninee and other related irnermediao comrnittees and by
means of regular risk, control and audit reporting system.

The Board of Directors regulariy reviews and approves Bank’s main risk approach, risk principies and
policies which are initially discussed and decided by the Risk Managemem Committee. The Board of
Directors aiso determines Banks risk appetite by risk limits taking market conditions and Bank’s risk
raking capacity irno consideration. Risk iimits are made up of reguiatory and inzernal limits on the basis
of risk types.

Bank’s Senior Managernent is responsible to the Bank’s Board of Directors that daily activities are
executed within the risk rnanagement procedures and risk iimits determined by the Board of Directors
and that risk rnanagement system operates in effective and eflicient manner.

The Internal Audit, the Intemal Control and Compiiance Presidency and The Risk Management
Departments which directly report to the Board of Directors operate in coordination with the business
units of the Bank. in this seope, it 15 aiso Senior Management’s responsibihity to take necessary measures
in order to resolve identitled weaknesses. deficiencies and errors stated in the repons of intemal and
external audits, intemai control and risk management.
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İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL POSITİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Localiy and intemationally accepted risk modeis and parameters are used in the identification,
measuremenr and monitoring of risks within the scope of risk management. The Bank strives continuously
for development and improvement of intemal methods and models. Fonvard looking risk repoıts prepared
through regular and ciose monitoring of the market developments are made available for the Senior
Management and the Board of Directors. In order to analyse the potential risks that the Bank may be
exposed in extreme cases, various scenario analyses are performed and contingency plans are prepared.
The Bank’s intemal capiıal adequacy assessment process (“ICAAP”) has been established and the ICAAP
has been performed parallel to the annual budget process on an annual basis. Moreover. various risk
mitigation techniques are utilized to limit and provide protection against risks the Bank is exposed tü. The
effectiveness and efficiency of the risk mitigation techniques are regularly monitored.

b. General view to risk wcightcd amounts

Riskweighted amounts Minimum
capital

—-- —

Currcnt Prior Corrcnt
Pedod Period Period

31 December 31 December 31 Decemher
2016 2015 2016

lif Credh risk (excluding countetparty credit risk) (CCR) 429.126 238.114
2 Ofwhich standaidined appmacb (SA) 429.126 238.114 34.330
3 Of which intemal mfing-based (IRB) appmach L
4 Counterftycftditüsk flQ
5 Of which standardised appmach for counteıparty eredit risk (SA-CCR) 1.008 200 81
6 Of wbich intemal model method (1MM)
7 Eguity posiüons in banking bookümaıicet-based approach - - -

8 juity investncnts in ftınds- look-tbmugh appmach -: -

9 Eqy invcstments in fiinds - mandate-based appmach . —_______ -

10 Eguiıy investnents in ftınds— fallback appmach
1 1 Sdulement risk .

12 Securitisution exposwes in banking book .

13 Ofwhich IRB müngs-based appmach (RBA) . -

1.3 Ofwhich IRB Supervisory Fonnula Approach (SEA) . -

15 Of which SAlsimplified supeMsory fbrmula appmach (SSFA) . -

16 Market risk . 10.039 10.635 804
1T Ofwhich smndardised appmacb (SA) 10.039 10,635 804

18 Of which intcmal model aşprvaches (1MM) -

19 Opemdonaldsk 1643
20 OfwhichBasiclndicatorAppmnch

—

20.533 4.432 1,643
21 OfwhichStandardiseğppjç__

— ı__.
22 Of which AdvancedMeasurementApprouch

-

23 Amounts below the thresholdstbrdeduction(subjectto25O%riskweigjt)
- —______

24 Floorndjustment
25 Total (1+4+7+84Ş+10+1l+12+16+19t23+24) 460,716 253,381 36,858
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INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSİTION AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

c. Linkages behveen financial statements and regulatory exposures
e. 1.) Differcnces and mapping between regulatory consolidation and financial statement:

Carrying valucs of items in accordnnce with ‘FAS
Carrying Not sllbjcct to
vıtlues as ciipital

reporled in requiremenls or
pohlished Subject (0 Suhjcct in suhject to
flnancial Subjeet to counterpnrty Suhject to the market deduction from

3ecemb2 n!!i11nt! () crcditrisk securitisation risk()
tssets
:ash and balances nt central bank 34,436 34,436 . -

Financial asseis heid for tradifiL 281 - 281 - — 281
Financial asscts dcsignaicd aL fair valuc through

J!9JEŞ_z___ı___:
anks 29,144 29.144 -

R.eceivahles 6am monev markcts 15,133 15,133 . - - -

vailabIe for sale financial asseis (Bel) 20.538 15,735 4,803 - . -

Loans and receivables 403,870 403,870 . - -

oPı£eiya es - . -

iWı!n!Y .i9!! -.________ .__ı ..z.
[nvestments in associates (net) - . - - -

Lnvestments in subsidiahcs (net) - . - . .

et
-_._____ - -

Leasinreceivables - - .

-

Deüvativcflnancialassetshddforhedges .

—— t
L1PiP1.as ——_________ 8

-

67
[niannible assets (net) 981 . - 981
[nvcstrncntpropcflies (net)

. ._H
Fax asscts 689 689 - -

1on-currcnt asscts and disposal groups classifled as
held thy sale (net) . . -

)Ihcr assets 4,604 4.604 . - - -

rotal asseis 510357 504,225 5,084 281 1.048
Liabilitics
ypyşip,,_

—

)edvaiivdfinancialliabilities_heldfijr______ 1.603 •60 - 1.603
kınds horrowed 191,897 . - 191.897
Debttomymarkets .

. -.

)ebt securities in issue 37.239 - - - 37,239
unds 3,917 . - - - 3.917

tarious debts 1.454 . - 1.454
)ther liabilities 5,112 - - 5.112
Faciorine debts . - - -

)ebtsfromIcasintransactions
... —— t — — z.

Derivative flnanciM Iiabilities hcld for hedues - -

‘rovisinns 6.435 - - - - 6.435
Fax liabilitv 2.079 - 2.079
Liabilitics included in disposal groups classıficd as
held for sale (net) - - - -

;ubordinated debts - - -

Eqyiy
.

.

._,..

,8
Folal liahilides 510357 . 6.229 . 1.603 504.128

(9 Unconsolidated linancial statements of Bank are stated.
(**) The Amounts of flnancial instruments, which are measured in aceordance with TAS and ineluded in trading accounts within the
seope of’tlıe’kcgulation on Measuremeni and Assessment of Capital Adequacy Ratios of Banks’ are represented in Subject to market risk
framework” colurnn.
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PASHA YATİRIM BANKASİ A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts am expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless othenvisc stated.)

İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL POSITİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

c.2.) Main sources of differences between regulatory exposure amounts and carrying values in financial
statements

Sıibject 10 Subject to
Subject to Subjeei tü counterpany maıket

Tolal eredil risk securitizalion credit risk risk ()
Assets carrying valuc amount in aceordance with TAS

1 undeLş£ofreulaLo’consohdation 509,309 504.225 . 5.084 281
Liabilitics carrying valuc amount in accordancc with TAS

2undcrreubtoryscoofconsoUda6on (7.832>: .

3 Tolal net amount ender regulaton’ scope ofconsolidation 501.477 504.225 (1,145) (1.322)
4 ombalance sheet nmounts 197.921 138.211
5 Difterences in valuations . . —________

6!DUTercncesdueodi0rentnerün mles -____________ 1,626 11.371
of provisions — -

8 DiITL’rencesdueıo BRSA’sppHca6ons - - -: -

9 due tü risk reduetion 3.353
- j 527

10 Risk amounts . 645.789 - 1.008 10.019

() The Amounts of flnancial instmments. which am measured according to TAS and includcd in Lrading accounts within the scope
of the Regulation on Mea urement and Msessmcnt of Capilal Adcquacy Ratios of Banks”, am represented in “Suhjcct tü

market risk framework” column are presenled.

c.3.) Explanaıions of differences between amounts in aceordance with TAS and regulatory exposure
amounts:

a) There are no differences between amounts presented in financial statements in accordance with TAS
and amounts accounted in accordance with regulatory consolidation.

b) Differences between amounts in accordance with TAS and regulatory exposure amounts:

On counterpartv credit risk related transactions, the differences between the valued amounts in accordance
with TAS in the seope statutory consolidation and the amounts after risk reduction arise from the addition
of potential risk amounts per maturity and transaction type to renewal cost of derivative transactions
related 10 counterparty credit risk.

The valued amounts of the items which are subject to market risk per TAS represent the fair value of
trading financial instruments. Despite that, the amount at the risk amount line represents the amount which
is subject market risk that derives from the calculation of capital requirements due to the Ioss on interest
rate risk of market risk. share price risk, cunency risk in the scope of “Regulation on Measurement and
Evaluation of Banks Capital Adequacy Ratio”.
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NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Aınounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless othcnvise stated,)

INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL POSITİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

c) Explanations related to the systems and controls which are defined to ensure prudence and reliability
of valuation estimates in accordance with prudent valuation procedures and principles within the scope
of appendix 3 of”Regulation on Measurement and Evaluation ofCapital Adequacy of Banks”:

in case financial insiruments that are accounted at their fair vaiues are traded in an active market, the
valuation is made based on market pdce. The accuracy of market price that 15 used at valuation k being
confirmed periodicaliy. The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market
are being calcuiated in accordance TMS 39. Derivative financial instruments are valued by discounted
cash flow model wiih the use of market data. For the valuation of certain financial instruments. third
partv valuarions and genemiiy accepted valuation modeis can be used. The accuracy and independence
of inputs that are used at the valuation of market value and/or used at valuation methods by modeliing
are being controlled periodicaliy. Ln addition. there are control processes for the comparison of the
current market value of financial instruments with the recalculated values.

d) Explanations on Credit Risk

Credit risk management includes the definition of credit risks. their measurement and management.

Risk Iimits are defined by Board of Directors in such a manner that covers alI possible imponant risk
components. in accordance with the Bank’s operations and the size and complexity of products and
services. Care is taken to ensure that the risk Iimits are in line with market expectations and reflect the
Bank’s risk appetite and Bank’s strategies. The credit policies are established in consistence with risk
limits.

When determining Bank’s credit risk profile, diversification methods are applied in order to prevent
concentrations. The choice of customers are done in accordance with policies and risk limiis. Besides.
the capability of the customer to pay via its cash flows generated from its own activities are taken into
considemtion.

Risk rating modeis (borrower rating model and facility rating model) are utilised to discriminate
borrowers in terms oftheir credibilities. In the credit risk management process, Risk Management Unit
conducts the activities of measurement of credit risk through models. monitoring and reponing. in
addition to the risk limits regarding credit risk. several concemrations are analyzed in the credit ponfolio.

The outputs of the risk rating modeis are an importaat part oferedic allocation process as weli asa tool
10 measure the probability of default of the customers and the portfolio.

The Bank utilises an effective risk management policy that truly classifies risks and customers in order
to achieve its targets. Appropriate decision systems are in place for the correct evaluation of risks and
the limit structure of the customers are determined.

To measure the credibility of the customers, analysis and intelligence studies are performed. The
information from past. current and future financial and non-financial data are examined.
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PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in lhousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless othenvise stated.)

İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL POSİTİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

For a consistent evaluation. quantiflcation and monitoring of risks; in order to make correct decisions
during the processes of credit request by the customer, credit approval, collateralization, restructuring,
monitoring and ciosing. ali information and documents regarding the customer are collected in a shared
database. Credit proposais are finalized by the evaluation of General Manager, Credit Committee or
Board of Directors, depending on the limits. Credit risks are measured, monitored and reported by the
Risk Management Unit.

d.1) CR1— Credit quality of assets:

Gross Carrying :mounü reported in
Financial Statemenis

in aceordance ısith TAS
Defauhcd Non-defaulted Allowances / amnflization

cxposures (a) cxposurcs (b) and impairment * (e) Net Valuc (a+b—c)
1 Loans - 403.870 - 403.870
2 Debt securities - 20.538 - 20.538
3 Oflbalanee sheet exposurcs . 197.921 - 197.921
4 Total . 622.329 . 622.329

‘ Since the Hank tines net have any impaired Icans and reeeivables in accordance with “Regulation Related to Prineiples and
Procedures on Determıning the Qualıflcations of Hanks’ Loans and Other Receivables and the Pmvision lbr These Loans and
Other Recehables” CProvisioning Regulation’) puhlished in the Ofijelal Gazette No. 26333 dated November 1, 2006. the
allowancesİamornzatıon and impairment has been presented as zero in the table above.

d2) CR2— Changes in stock of defanlted Ioans and debt securities:

The taNe KR2, which shows the changes in stocks of receivables in defauh and debt instruments is not
prepared since the Bank does not have any receivables in default and debt insıruments.

d.3) CRB — Additional explanations on eredit quality of assets:

The Bank does not have any restrucrured, defaulted or non-performing loans. The breakdown of
receivables by geographical area, secior and time ro maturity are provided in the tables below:

Geograpliic breakdown
Debt

31 December 2016 Cash loans securities Danks Total
Domestic 350.734 13,864 17,543 382,141
Europeancountries 17
USA, Canada 678 678
OECD countries - -

Off-shrebankingregions
Other 6,674 5,006 11,680
Total 403,870 20,538 29,144 453,552
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İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL POSITİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Sector breakdown
31 December 2016 Cash Loans
Agriculture -

Farming and Stockbreeding______________________
Forestiy -

Fishery -

Manufacturing 25,571
Mining and Quanying -

Production 17.938
Electricity, Gas and Water 7.633

Construction 51,857
Senices 247358

Wholesale and ReıaiiTnde 30,929
Accommodation and Dining -

Transportation and Telecom -

Financial Institutions 205,808
Real Estate and Rental Services 10.621

• Pmfessional Services
Educational Services -

Healıh and Social Services -

Others 79,084
Total 403,870

Maturitv breıkdown:

The breakdown of assets by time to maturity 15 provided on Section Four. Note Vi.

d.3) CR3— Credit risk mitigation techniques:

in order to ensure timeiy and compiete fuifilment ofali obligations atising from the ban, it is essential to
obtain appropriate collaterais.

The main purpose of collateralization ofany ban k to minimize the credit, foreign exchange and maturity
risk. Within ıhis scope. the minimum margin of guaran(ee k deıermined and the guarantees suitable for
the ban types are obtained. There 15 colbateral matching in the system for each ban. in addition. the
appropriateness of the margin for each guarantee is aiso checked.

The Bank discounts the collaterais by using some flxed ratios and calculates the expected cash equivalent
of the colbaterais in case they are transformed into cash. The difference between the credit and the cash
equivalent of the coiiateral is defined as the net risk. in calculation of the net risk, the coefflcients in the
facility rating model are taken into account.

58



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLİCLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS OİUGİNALLY ISSUED
İN TURMSH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTİON THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT3I DECEMBER 2016
(Arnounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless oLhenvise stated.)

İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL POSİTİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Exposures
Exposures Exposures secured by

unsecured: secured hy financial Exposures
carrying collateral, of Exposures guarantees, Exposures secured by credit
amount Eıposures which: secured by ofwlıich: secured by derivnflves, of

(Aceording to secured by secured financial secured credit which: secured
TAS) collaleral amount guarantees amount derivalives amount

1 Loans 403.871) . - . . . -

2 Deht securitles 20.538 - - .

2 Total 324.408 . - .

3 Dethulted items . . . . - -

d.5) Qualitative explanations using the rating grades to calculate the banks’ credit risk by standard
approach:

in determining the risk weights regarding risk ciasses defined in Anicle 6 of “Reguiation on Measurement
and Assessment of Capital Adequacy of Banks”. country’ risk classification published by OECD
(Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development) is taken into account. According to capital
adequacy regulations, the risk ciassification and risk weights ofreceivables from banks and intermediat
institutions and receivables from corporates are determined in accordance with the regulations.
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INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED HNANCIAL POSITİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

CR4: Standardised approach — Credit risk exposure and eredit risk mitigation effects

Exposurcs before credit risk Exposures after credit risk
miligation and eredit mitigation and credit Risk weightcd asscts (RVA) amounts

Ors eonvrni onfactors and RWA density
On halance On balance

sheet 0ff balance sheet Otihalance

ıpi ıfl2s!S. ı!syLşım!, ,_Yi
Receivables ham Central
Govemments or Central

1 Banks 35267 : 35.267 19.622 4.56%
1 Receivahles from Regional

Management or Local
2 Govemments . . 0.00%

Receivables hom
Administrative Units or Non

3 commercial Ventures - . . 0.00%
Receivables from Multilateral

4DevoprnBanks ——

-_----____z

0.00%
Receivables hom

5 ntemationuiOrüa1ons
.

. 000%
Receivables hom Banks and

6 Brokera8çÇporntion 253,969 1 15,499 253,969 97,000 151,677 3526%
7 ComorIereceivabIes 204,737 82,422 204,737 41,211 245,948 58’o
8 Retail receivables . . 0.00%

Collateralized by real estate

j !£L!Pi9A.. -. .,.

Receivables defined in high

.9:29%
Securities collateralized by
moflpe —--— -—_____

..._:

- O.0°4
13 Securitization n£şi!i£!.__.. . . . .

0.00%
Short-tenn receivables and
short-term corporate
receivables hom Banks and

4 7,668 - 7,668 . 7,668 1.78%
Investments in nature of

15 Collective Investment funds . . 0.00%
16 qtıisecuriin’stments - -

- ——

0.00%
17 Other receivables 5.937 - 5.937 5.219 1.22%
18 Total 507,578 197,921 507,578 138,211 430,134 100.00%

(*) Credit risk amount resulting from counterpafly risk is included.
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İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCIAL POSİTİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

CR5— Standardised approaeh — exposures by risk classes and risk weights:

1 Total credit

j risk amount
%50 Guarantead by (after CRM

0% 10% 20% ortgages 75%W0 Ş95 J9. ._9S!
1 15,645 - . - - 19.622 - . . 35,267
2--
3 . - - - — . . - . -

4 - . . . . - . . . -

5 . . - . - .

6 4,626 88,622 - . 178 5,004 252,539 350.969
7 . - . - 245.948 - . - 245.948
8 . - - . -

9 . . . - - . -

10 - . - . . - - . -

Il — . . . . — . . . —

12 . - . . . . -

13 - - - . . . . . - -

14 - - - - - 7,668 . - 7.668
15 - - - - . . - -

16 - . - - - - - . -

l7 719 - - . - 5.218 . . - —— 5937
18 20,990 - 88.622 . - 278.633 5.004 - 252.539 645,789

1) Receivables from Central Govemments or Central Banks
2) Receivables Itom Regional Management or Local Govemmenıs
3) Receivables ftom Administrative Units or Non-commercial Venlures
4) Reecivablcs from Multilateral Development Hanks
5) Receivables from international Organizations
6) Receivables from Banks and Brokerage Corporation
7) Corporate receivables
8) Retail receivables
9) Collateralized by real estate mongages receivables
10) Non-perlörming receivables
1 1) Receivables detined in hugh risk cutcgory by ÜRSA
12) Securities eollateralized by mortgages
13) Securitization positions
14) Short-ıerm receivables and short-term corporate receivables from Banks and Hrokerage corporations
15) Investmcnıs in nature of Collective lnvestment funds
16) Eguity security investments
17) Other reeeivables
18) Total
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UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS ORIGİNALLY ISSUED
İN TURMSH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT3İ DECEMBER 2016
(Arnounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless othenvise stated.)

INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL POSITİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

e. İssues related to counterparty credit risk (CCR)

The CCR strategy 15 determined by counterparty type and product categories. Counterparties are
categorized as central counterparties, hanks, corporate and commercial companles. The products are
grouped as foreign exchange transactions (forward, futures, swap), interest swap transactions (interest
swap, cross currency swap and futures and repo transactions.

The creditworthiness of the counterparty is analyzed prior to the transactions leading to the CCR and
subsequentiy the creditworthiness of the counter parties is reviewed at regular intervais. The frequency
of inspections 15 increased when necessary.

The scope and level of information providing the opportunity to assess the creditworthiness of the
counterparty shall be differentiated depending on the volume of the transaction to be realized, the level
of the CCR and / or the counterparty.

For counterparties except banks, the counterparty credit risk limiis are determined based on credit
allocation policies. In case of deterioration of market conditions or in case of deterioration ofcredit quality
of some counterparties, limits are reviewed and necessary changes are made. If deemed necessary, the
approved limits are blocked by the Credit Committee / Credit Allocation Business Unit and by the
approval of the Board of Directors.

Collateralization principles and procedures are applied for counterparties other than financial institutions
within the framework ofcredit policies and application principles currently applied in the Bank.

The potential, current and maximum risk amounts of the transactions are calculated / determined in order
to determine the CCR. The risks of transactions that are subject to the legaliy binding bilateral netting
agreement and to which the netting transaction can be applied are followed together.
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INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL POSITİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

el) CCRİ —Anaiysis ofcounterparty credit risk (CCR) exposure by approach:

Es pos u re
Potential after eredit Risk

Revaluation eredit risk EEPE risk Vcightcd
üst esposure (*) Aipha mitigation Amounts

t Standard approach-CCR (for derivatives) 278 254 . 1.4 532 532
intemal Model Method (lbr derivatives.
Repo Transactions, Marketable Securities
er EMTIA lending or borrowing
transactions, transaclions with ü leng
settlement time. Marketable Security

2 ıransactions with eredit) . . — . — —

Simple Approach for credit risk
mitigation (for derivatives, Repo
Transactions. Marketable Seeurities or
EMTIA lending or bonowing
transactions. transactions with a leng
settlement time. Marketable Seeurity

3 transactions with credit) . - - - 177 177
Comprehensive Approaeh lbr crcdit risk
mitigation (for derivatives, Repo
Transactions, Marketable Seeurities or
EMTIA lending er borrowing
transactions, transaetions with a long
settlement time, Marketable Security

4 transactions with eredit) . — . - —

VaR for derivatives, Repo Transactions,
Marketable Sccurities or EMflA lending
er bonowing transactions, transactions
with a leng senlement time. Marketable

5 Security transactiens with cftdit . - . . —

6 Total . - . - 709 709
() Etlective expected positive exposure

e.2) CCR2 — Credit valuntion adjustmcnt (CVA) capital charge:

Risk amount (after credit
risk miligation Risk weighted

techniques) amounts
Total portfolios subject to the Advanced CVA capitai eharge

1 (i) Value at Risk (VaR) component (inclnding the 3 xmuftiplier)
2 (ii) Stressed VaR component (including the 3 ‘<multiplier) - -

3 AlI portfolios subject to the Standardised CVA capital eharge 299 299
4 Total subject to the CVA capital charge 299 299
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INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL POSITİON AND
RİSK MANACEMENT (Continued)

e.3) CCRJ — Standardised approach — CCR cıposures by regulatoıy portfolio and risk weights:

Risk Veights
Total

Credit
Risk Ciassifications 0% İO% 20% 50% 75% 100% 150% Other Risk
Receivables from Central Govemments or Central
Banks - - - - - - - - -

Receivables from Regional Management or Local
Govcmmcnıs — — — — — — — — —

Rccei ablcs from Administrative Uniis er Nen
commercial Vcnlures — — — — — — — — —

ReceiabIes ftom Muliilateral Development Banks — — — — — — — — —

Receivables from international Organizations — — — — — — — — —

Receivables from Danks and Urokerage
Corporation - - - - 11008 - - 1,008

Coqoratc receivables — — — — — — — —

Retail receivables — — — — — — — — -

Collateralized by real estate moflgages receivables — — — — — — — — —

Non-perlörming receivahles - - - - - - — -

Receivables detined in high risk category by BRSA - - - - - - - — -

Securities collaleralized by morıgages — — — — — — — — —

Securitization positions — — — — — — — — —

Short-tcrm receivables and short-term corporate
receivables from Banks and Brokerage corporations — - - - - - - - -

Invesıments in nature of Collective Investment
funds - - - - - - - - -

Equity sccurity investments — — — — — — — — —

Other receivahles — — — — — — - — —

Oıher asseıs — — — — — — — — —

Total - - - 1,008 - - 1,008

e.4) CCR4 — Risk class and counterparty eredit risk based on PD:

Since standard approach is used in capital adequacy calculation, the relevant table is not presented.

c.5) CCRS—Composition of collateral for CCR exposure:

Collatemls fr Derivatives CollalenIs ot Other Transactions 1
Collatemls Taken Collatenis Giyen Collaterals

Resened Not Reserved Resened Not Resered Taken Collaterals Giyen
Cash- local curency - - - 4.626
Cash- foreign cunency . . - - - -

Govemment bondlbill— local . . - - 4.803
Govemment hond/biII — other . . - -

Public instituıions bondlbill - . . - -

Corponte bondibill - . - - -

Share eguities - - - -

Other collateral . - . -

Total - . . - 4,626 4,803
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INFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL POSITİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

e.G) CCR6 — Credit derivatives:
There is no credit derivatives arising from purchasing or selling the credit derivatives of the Bank’s
portfolio.

e.7) CCRS — Exposures to central counterparties:

The Bank does not have transactions related with exposures to central counterparty, the related table has
not been prepared.

f. Issues to be announced to public related to securitisation positions

The Bank does not have transactions related with securitizations, the related table has not been prepared.

g. Explanations on market risk

The risk principles, policies and risk limits related to the management of market risk are approved by the
Board of Directors and reviewed on a regular basis. The Bank’s Senior Management performs day to day
management of the market risk in accordance with the limits assigned by the Board of Directors. The
Bank is exposed to market risk as a result of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, interest rates, and
market prices of stocks. Exchange rate risk and interest rate risk are evaluated as the two most important
components of market risk. The Bank engages in derivative transactions for hedge purposes when found
necessary.

Market risk is calculated by two different methods, namely the “inherent model” and the “standard
method”. According to inherent model market risk is measured by Value at Risk (“VaR”) approach which
takes into account different risk factors. VaR calculations are performed based on variance-covariance
and/or historical simulation methods, depending on whichever is appropriate giyen the economic
conditions. VaR 15 calculated weekly and reported to Senior Management. For legal reporting, standard
method is utilised.

The following table indicates the details of the market risk calculation as of 31 December 2016, in
accordance with the Market Risk Calculation principles pursuant to the Third Section of the “Regulation
on Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy of Banks” published in the Offlcial Gazette no.
295!] on23 October2ol5.

RWA
Oulrieht products

1 Inıcrest rate risk (eneraI and specific)

1 —________ -

i
4 fnçdityjjs________ -

-___ -

5 Sjpifledapproach -

6 Deha-psmethod -

7 Scenario approach -

8 Securitisation -

9 Total 10,049
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INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL POSITİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continucd)

h. Explanations on operational risk

The “Bask Indicator Method” that is mentioned in “Regulation on Measurement and Assessment of
Capital Adequacy of Banks” Communiqu published in the Offlcial Gazette no. 29511 on 23 October
2015 and entered into force as ofiuly 1, 2012, is used in the operational risk calculation of the Bank. The
amount subject to the operational risk as of3 1 December 2016 is calculated once a year by using the gross
income of the Bank in 2013, 2014 and 2015. For 31 December 2016, it was calculated as TL 20,533.

Currcut Pdod 1 TolaVl’ositivej
31 Dccembcrı 31 Demhr 31 Decemher GI year
2013 Amountl 2014 ,mouut 2015 Amount! numh.rI Rntio (%) Tatil

Grass Rcvenue 1215 5.571 26.%6: 10.9511 15 1.643
Amounc Subjecc ta
Operatianal Risk
(TotaPI2.5) 20.533

Prior redod Tolat1Positive.
31 Decemhcr il Decembcr1 31 December GI vear
20(2 Amount 2013 Amonnti 2014 Amoant number Rali2J/o) Toiai

Gross Revenuc 305 1215 5.571 2.364 15 335
Amount Subjecl to
Opemıional Risk
(Totail25) 3.432

İX. EXPLANATIONS ON THE PRESENTATİON OF FİNANCİAL ASSETS AND LİABILITIES AT
THEIR FAİR VALUES

1. Fair valuc calculations of financial assets and Iiabilities:

The fair values of held-to-maturity assets are determined based on market prices or when this price is
not avaiiable. based on market prices quoted for other secudties subject to the same redemption
qualifications in terms of interest. maturity and other similar conditions.

The fair value of marketable securities issued is calculated according to quoted market prices and if
ıhese are not available. amounts derived from discounted cash flow modeis.

The expected fair value of Ioans and receivables are determined by calculating the discounted cash flows
using the current market interest rates for the tixed ioans with tixed interest rates. For the Ioans with
floating interest rates, it is assumed tlıat the carıying value reflects the fair value.

The following table summarizes the carrying values and fair values of financial assets and liabilities.
The carrying value represents the acquisition costs and accumulated interest accruais of corresponding
financial assets or Iiabilities.
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İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL POSİTION AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

—---—

31 Decemher 31 December 31 Deeemher 31 Deeembeı
2016 2015 2016 2015

Financial Asscls 468,685 302,720 467,234 302,720
lnterbankMoneyMarketPlacemenıs 15,133 - 15,133 -

Banks 29,144 47,357 29,144 47.357
Available-for-Sale Financial Assets 20,538 9,619 20,538 9.619

Loans 403,870 245,744 402,429 245,744

Fbı 250,470 81,683 250,215 81,683
Funds borrowed from nıher fln, Instilutions 191,897 71,311 191,672 71,311
Payables to money market 15.963 15.963
Securitics issued 372391 -: 37,209
Miscellaneous Payables 1.454 1001 1.454 —— l0
BormwcrFunds 3.917 102721 3,917 10,272

i. Fair valuc hierarehy:

TFRS 7 sets a hierarchy of valuation techniques according to the obsenability of dara used in valuation
techniques which establish basis for fair value calculations.

Aforesaid fair value hienrchy is determined as follows:

a) Identical assets and quoted market prices (non-adjusted) (Ist level);

b) Directly (by vay of prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) data for the assets or liabilitles,
other ıhan quoted prices in the Ist level (2nd level);

c) Dala not based on observable market data regarding assets or liabilities (3rd level).

Fair value hierarchy of the financial assets and liabilities of the Bank carried ar fair value according
to the foregoing principles is giyen in the table below:

31 December 2016 Le’eI 1 Level 2 Level 31 Total
Finonciaiasseısatthir valuc lhrouharoIit/Ioss — 281_L 2İ
Available for sale tinançial assets I3.864 6.6731 20.538
Folal ıssets 13,863 281 6,6731 20,819

- -
1:60L 1.60

Hedgingdeıüathelinandalusscts —

- — -

fotal liabilities — 1,603
—

1,603

3! Decemher 2015 Level 1 Level 2 Levcl 3] Total
Ihir ‘aluc 604

—

__Pq1
vaiIable t tinancial asseis 9,619

-

9.619
fotal asscts 9,619 604 - 10,223

tinancialassets 48 - — 48
Hedgingdcrivativelinanciaiasscts -

-

Fotiil Iiahilities 48 48

The Bank has purchased the level 3 available for sale financial assets in year 2016. There are no transfers
between the leveis.

67



CONVENİENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS ORİGINALLY İSSUED
İN TURKISH, SEl NOTE 1 OF SECTİON THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASİ A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Arnounts are expressed in thousands orTurkish Lira (‘TL’) unlesa cthenvise stated.)

İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL POSİTİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

X. EXPLANATİONS ON THE ACTWİTİES CARRİED OUT ON BEHALF AND ACCOUNT OF
OTHER PERSONS

The Bajık, has been authorized to provide Trading Brokerage Activity, Portfolio Brokerage Activity, Best
Effort Copy Public Oftering Brokerage Activity and Limited Custody Services. The Bank does not deal
with flduciarv transactions.

Xİ. EXPLANATİONS ON OPERATING SEGMENTS

Net Interest Inccme/(Loss)______________________ 33,683

Net Fee and Commission lnçome/(Loss)
Tradina Gain/(Loss)
Otherüpcrnting Segrnents Gaid(Ioss)_____________________________
Pmvisions fpr Laan Losses and Other Receivables(-) (!,801)

OthcrOperating Expense (-)
Profit Before Tax 33,012
Tıx Provision
Net Profit 33,012

1.130
(3,171)

4,784

30,512
1.130
4,784

99

! Treasun and Asset
Liability

CurrentPeriod NIangement Tatal
Total Assets 403,870 106,487 $10357

Total Liabilities 3,917 506,440 $10357

99
(1.801)

(16,612)
(14,900)
(4.107)

(19,007)

(16,612)
18,112

(4.107)
14,005

Treasuı and Asset
E Liahility

Pdor Pe_ Total
Total Assets 245,744 76,66U 322,305

Tolal Liabiliıies 10.272 3I2,I33 322,405

Net Interest Income/(Loss)____________ 17.647 7.3741 25,021

Net Fec and Commission Income/(Loss) 345 -1 345

TradingGain4Loss) . L1021u02
. 97

Provisions forLoanLosscsandOherReceivables(.) <2,178) ——

- (12.903) 903)

Profit flefore Tax 1 15,814 (4,330) t 1,484

Tax Provision . (2,697) (2.697)
Net Proflt 15,814 (7,027) 8,787
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SECTION FWE

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO
UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS

1. EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO ASSETS

1. Information related to cash and the acconnt of The Central Bank
(the “CBRT”):

ü. Information on casli and the account of the CBRT:

of the Republic of Turkey

3! Decembcr 2016 31 Dccembcr20l5
- TL

Cash/Forcj£ncurrency -_______ 20 10. 64 5
:BRT 14,784: 19.6221 782 1 1.870
Jthcr -. -! -, -
Fotal l4.80-P 19.6321 788 11,875

İnformation on the account of the CBRT:

31 Dcccmber 2016 1 31 Deccmber20l5
Tü Tü rc

DcmandUnrestricwd Amount 4.784fl33r. 782 — 98
rime Unrestricıcd Amount -1 -
rime Rcstrictcd ,\mount -ı 19.579! -L 11.772
fotal 14.7831 I9,622 782 11,870

c. Information on resene requirements:

Aceording 10 CBRT’s “Required Reserves Announcement” numbered 2013/15, the Bank has 10

provide reserve requirement amounts in CRRT for Turkish currency and foreign currency
denominated Iiabilities. The reserve requirements may be kept as Turkish Lira. USD. Euro and
sıandard gold. The Bank does not keep reserve requirements in standard gold. CBRT star-ted
paying interest on reserve balances in TL starting from November 2014 and heid in USD staning
from May 2015. The reserve rates for TL liabilities vary between 1% and 10.5% according to
İheir maturities as of 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: between 5% and 11.5%). The
reserve rates for foreign currency liabilities vary between 4.5% and 24.5% according to their
maturities as of 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: behveen 5% and 25%).

2. Information on financial asseis at fair value through profit or Ioss:
ü. As of3I December 2016, the Bank has no financial assets at fair value through profit or Ioss

subject to repo tnnsactions (31 December 2015: None).

As of 31 December 2016: there are no and tinaıwial assets giyen as collateral/are blocked
(31 December 2015: None).

b. Positive differcnces related to trading derivative financial assets:
31 December 2016 3! Decembcr2Ols

onvard — 28 1 -
S’yap

...-—-.—

60$
Futures - - - -
Oçtions -- -
Other - -

Total 281 604 -

e. Information on trading securities:

None (31 December 2015: None).

k
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

3. Information on banks:

a. Information on banks:

31 December 2016 31 Decembcr20lS
TL TL FC

3anks
Domestic 14,024 3.519 24,028 -

._t2!!1.gfl_.__ 6,59 2,000 21,329
Headquarters and Branches
Abroad - - - -

Total 19.028 10,116 26,028 21329

İnformation on foreign banks accounts:

Ljnrestricted Amount Restricted Amount
31 Dcccmbcrj 31 Decembeı 31 Decembcı 31 Decembeı

20I6 2015 201< 2015
European Union Countries 5,917 287 -

USA, Canada 678 10,808 -

OECD Countrics (*) - - -

Oflshore Banking Regions - - -

Othcr 5.006 12.234 -

Total II,601t 23329 -

(9 OECD Countries other than 1W countries. USA and Canada.

4. Information on available-for-sale financial assets:

a. As of 31 December 2016 Ihere are financial asseis giyen as collateral/blocked amounting to TL
1,029 (3 1 December 2015: TL 1,026).

As of 3 1 December 2016 tlıere are available-for-sale financial assets subject to repo transactions
TL 4,803 (31 December 2015: None).

b. Information on available for saie financial assets:

31 December 2016 31 Decemhcr20l5
Debt Securities 20.538 9.638

QuotedonStc4hxchang
—

._________ 9.638
NotQL._

Share Ccrtiflcates - -

QpotedonStockExchane______ -

SjÇp!çğ______ - - -

ImpentProvision(__________ - (19>
rotal 20,538 9.619

b.
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

1. Explanations on Ioans:

a. Information on alt tvpes of loans and advances giyen to shareholders and employees of the
Bank:

k Information on the first and second group Ioans and other receivables ineluding Ioans that
have heen restructurcd or reseheduled:

Stnndard Lnans and Loans and Other Receivahles linder Ciose

______ _______

—- OtherReceivables

______

Lo,ns and Lnans and other receivahles Loans and Loans and other receivhIes

__________________________

Othed with revised contract terms Other wiih revised contract lcrms
Receivahlej Restructured orf Receivables Restruclured or

__________________________(Totnl>

Rescheduledj
onpeciMizcdLoans 403.870 _ğ_j____

______

Loans aiven in enterprises ı l33.83 1 —

—

Ap2TIIaş__ 1L088j 9.395

Laans Granicd la Financia — —

Secıor 205.80 1
Consumer Loans —

Credıt Cards 1 — -

P!hçL 53.I36
- - - —

J!i!!flŞ -

)ıher Receivahle, — . — —

folal 403,870 9395 -

Numher of modifleations made to extend Slandard Ioans and olhcd Loans and othcr receivoblet
pşmentjIan receivabks underclosemonhnılrn
Exıended 1w 1 or 2 times 9395!
Extended 1w 3.4 or 5 times
Extendcd by more than 5 limes
Total

Standard bana and other Laans and other rcceivables
ç4çLa!.!jç___.___

0-6Months
6-12 Months 9,395
l-2Years
2-SYears
5 Years and üçer
Total

31 December 2016 t 31 Deeember2ol5

CnshL Non-Cash[ Cashi Non-Cash
)ircct Laans Granled ta Shareholders

-

30.199 -L 22.475

_______

22.475
Individoals

______

-1

______

- - -

Indict Loans Granted ta Shareholders - -

Total T — 30.199 22.475
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EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continucd)

c. Breakdown of Ioans according to their maturities:

Standard Loans and Other Loans and Receivahles Under

Ieceivahs

CioseMoniloring
Loans and Otlıer Reslructured or Loans and Other Restructured or

Cash Loıns Receıvables Rescheduled Receıvahles Rescheduled
Short-Term Loans and Other Receivables 296,144 9,395 - -

Şp_ L.______
SpecaIizcd Leans

—— -

Other Receivables — . — —

4ledium and Long-Ierm Loons and Othe
Receivahles 98331 - - -

Non-Specialized Loans 98,331 - - -

Specialized Loan - - -

Other Receivables - - -

Information on consumer loans, individual credit cards, personnel Ioans and personnel
credit cards

None (31 December 2015: None).

Information on commercial instalment hans and corporate crcdit cards:

iIedium-Long
Short Term Term Total

çitErQ... -

Business_residential Inans — —

Automobile loans - 5,239 5,239

Consumerloans - -

Other - -

Commercial inslalment Ioans- Indexed to FC - -

Business resıdential laans — —

Automobile Ioans - -

Consumer loans - -

Other -

Commercial instalment Ioans- FC - -

Business residernial loans -

Automobile Ioans -

Consumerloans -

Other . -

-— —_______

-

Instalment — —

Non-Insta!ment - -

Computecredilcards-FC
.

Instalment — —

Non-Instalment - -

Overdraft accounls-TC (Commercial customer) - -

2YLE1!pJ11s.FC.FCCommerciaI_custoıp,eç)_ —

,., -

Tolal - 5,239 5.239

d.

e.
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

f. Loans according to types of borrowers:

31 December 2016 31 Decemher2O1
Public - -

Private 403,870 245,744
Total 403,870 245,744

Distribution of domestic and foreign Ioans:

31 Deccmber2ol6j 31 Dccembcr2üH
Domestic Laans 350,734 245,744

Lçjqwış..__ .

Total 403,870 245,744

h. Loans granted to investments in associates and subsidiaries:

None (31 December 2015: None).

1. Specific provisions accounted for Ioans:

None (31 December 2015: None).

j. Information on non-performing Ioans (Net):

1. Information on non-performing Ioans restructured or rescheduled and other
receivables:

None(31 December 2015: None).

2. Information on the movement of total non-performing Ioans:

None (31 December 2015: None).

3. Information on non-performing Ioans granted as foreign currency Ioans:

None (31 December 2015: None).

4. Information on non-performing loons based on types of borrowers:

None (31 December 2015: None).

g.
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

k. Information on the collecilon policy of non-performing loans and other receivables and
information on the write-off p01k>’ of the Bank:

Non-performing loans and other receivables are collected through legal follow-up and
liquidation of collaterais. Credits that have become losses in nature, are attached 10 the
certificate of insolvency or insufflcient collateral document, and written off from the Banks
assets. However, if the Banks receivable 15 an insignificant amount compared to the costs and
expenses to be incurred for the preparation of said documents, wriling off of assets may be
perfomıed ifthe Board of Directors decides 50.

6. Information on heId-to-maturitv investments:

None (31 December 2015: None).

7. Information on investments in associates:

None (31 December2ol5: None).

8. Information on subsidiaries (Net):

None (31 December2ol5: None).

a. Recognition of subsidiaries:

Explained in dıe Section Three in the relevant note.

b. Information on the equity ofsubsidiaries:

None.

e. Information on unconsolidated subsidiaries:

None.

d. Main financial figures of the subsidiaries in the order of the above table:

None.

e. Information on subsidiaries consolidated:

None.

f. Main financial figures of the subsidiaries consolidated in the order of the above table:

None.

g. Movementschedules of consolidated subsidiaries:

None.

h. Sectoral information on consolidated financial subsidiaries and the related carrying
amounts:

None.

i. Subsidiaries quoted on stock exchange:

None.
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

9. Information on joint ventures:

None (31 December 2015: None).

10. İnformation on kase receivables (net):

None (31 December 2015: None).

İİ. Information on hedging derivative financial assets:

None (31 December 2015: None).

12. Information on property and equipment:

Leased Fixed OtlıerTnngihle

—

Immov,ıble Assetsi Fiıed Asseis
Cost 271 7161 987

—---. -..

Net Dook Value - 135 369! 504
Current Period End: 31 December 2016
NetBokVaueatIhebegürnoflhePeriod_

.

dditions - 364 364

DflQŞIS(-Lflet
- . -

Pspı.t9!QL:L... —.--— .————

(67) (120) (187)
Imprnnnent
Dost nt Period End - 271 1,080 1.351

Accum ula d Ppd Ç•d ( (203) (467) (670)
CIosinı Net Book Valoe — 68 613 681

Leased Fized OtherTangihle
Prior Period End: 31 December 2014 Immovahle Asseta Pized Msets Total
Dost 271 456 727
\ccurnulated Deprecintion)_____ (68) (367) (435)

±L°XIii. 203 89 292
Corrent Pedod End: 31 December 2015
et8ookValuejinninofthe Period 203 89 292
Wditions 334 334
Dspg-).net (3) (3;

(68) (51) (119)
rnp3nt - -

Dost nt Pedod End 271 716 987
\ccumulated Deprecintion nt Period End (-) (136) (347) (483)
Dlosing Net Dook Valoc 135 369 504
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EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

13. Information on intangible assets:

Currcnt Period Vrior Period
31 December 2016 31 December2OU

Jet Book Vaiueattheki 4_ ..

\dditions 841 433

P!n!.£!!!9!’ (!)
Othert’) 9811 468

14. Information on investmcnt property:

None (31 December 2015: None).

15. Information on deferred tax asset:

The Bank calculates deferred tax asset or Iiability on the differences between the applied accounting
policies and valuation bases and tax legislation that comes from timing diffefences and reflects the
amount on the financial statements.

As of3l December 2016, the Bank calculated deferred tax asset amounting TL 689 and reflected
this amount to the financial statements (3 1 December 2015: TL 627).

in the situation that the difference between the book value and value subject to tax of the assets that
are subject to deferred tax is related to equity accounts, deferred tax asset or liabiiity is nelled with
the relevant accounts in this group.

j 31 Decemhcr 2016 31 December 2015

Deferred Tax Asset! (Liahility), net 3,447 689 3,145 627

Financial Ioss
Provision for employee benefits
Expense provisions
Other
Deferred Tax Asset, net

Other
Deferred Tax Liabilitv. net

Tcmpornry
Differences oli

Deferred Tax Base
Deferred Tax

Amoont

—1
I.7O

2681
1,822
3,792

(345)
(335)

340
54

364
758

(69)
<69)

Temporary
DitTerences of Deferred Tas

Deferred Tas Base Amounl
1.2391 247
i.321 26’

4O( 8<
738

3.701

(556)
(556)

147
738

(ili)
(fll)

16. Information on assets heid for resale and discontinucd operations:

None (31 December 2015: None).

17. Information on other assets:

As of 31 December 2016, other assets amount to TL 4.604(31 December 2015: TL 4.738) and don’t
exceed 10% of total balance sheet except off balance sheet commitments.
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EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED
(Continued)

Il. EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO LİABILITIES

1. Information on deposits:

The Bank has no deposits due to its nature as an investment bank.

FINANCİAL STATEMENTS

2. Negative differences related ta trading derivative financial liabilities:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Tl TL FC

Fonvard 725 . 10
Swap 878 . 10 28
Futures . - - -

2p!1e_
Other . - . -

Total 1,603 - 20 28

3. Information on funds borrowed:

a. Information on banks and other financial institutions:

31 Decemher 2016 31 December 2015
TL! rc TL FC

BorowinsfromtheCBRT
From Domestic Danks and Institutions 15,0 12 38.573 - 1.751
From Foreign Danks. Instimtions an
Funds 31.362 106.950 . 69.560
Total ! 46373 135,523

. 71311

Information on maturity structure of borrowings:

31 Dcccmbcr 2016 31 December 2015
TL! EC TLI Et

Ş1!E!° 45.663
—

302fl
Medjurn and Lon-term 99 8< tJ99
[Mal 46374! 145,523 -! 71311

e. Additional explanation related to the concentrations of the Bank’s major llabilitics on the
basis of concentrations, fund providing customers, sector groups and other criteria where
risk concentration is observed

The Bank, funds its assets mainiy with its capital and funds borrowed. The major portion of the
funds borrowed is provided from the Bank’s main shareholder and lıs risk group. The Bank’s
lotal borrowings from its risk group constitutes 27% of total asseis.

b.
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

4. İnformation on Repo Transactions:

1 31 December 2016 31 Decemher2Ols

.
-.........--...,.....,--

TL FC
Financial Institutions 4.6571
Other .[
Total 4,6571 -I

5. Securitles Issued

The Bank has issued a flxed rate bond at 26 October 2016, with nominal amount ofTL 37,500, with
90 day term maturing at 24 January 2017. The carrying amount of the bond is TL 37,239 as at 31
December 2016 (3 1 December 2015 — None).

6. Information on Borrower Fund:

Upto 1-3 3-12 1-5 OverDcmıınd
1 month Mooth Monıh Lar \ ears

31 December 2016
—

Borrovcrfund 3,417 500 .

31 December 2015

Borrower Iünd 10,272 - .

7. Information on other foreign sources:

As of3l December 2016, other liabilities amount to TL 5,112(31 December 2015: TL 5,338) and
don’t exceed 10% of total balance sheet.

8. Information on financial lease agreements:

31 December 2016 1 31 Decemher2Ol5
Gross Net Grossj Net

Less Thun 1 Year . . -

I-4Years .
QT!PAYL .. t

Total -I

9. Information on hedging derivative financial liabilities:

None (31 December 2015: None).
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

10. Information on provisions:

a. Information on general provisions:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Provisions forflwup 1. Loans and Receivables 3.8101 2.130

Additional Provision for Loans and Receivables with
Extendcd Mamrities -

Pmvisions fbr Group il. Leans and Receivables
Additional Provision for Loans and Receivables with
Extended Maturities . —

Pmvisions for Non Cash Loans 393 253
Other 268 287

5enernl Provisions 3.371 2.670

in aceordance with “Amendment to Regulation Related to Principles and Procedures on
Determining the Qualiflcations of Banks’ Loans and Other Receivables and the Provision for
These Loans and Other Receivables” published in Offlcial Gazette dated 14 December 2016
numbered 29918, the minimum required provision rates are determined For general ban
provision calculation. The Banks provision ratios exceed those minimum ratios as at 31
December 2016. ifthe minimıım provision ratios stated in the Regulation had been applied, the
general provision amount in the financial statements would be iower by TL 2,253.

b. Information on provisions related with foreign currency difference of foreign indexed
boans:

As of3 1 December 2016, provisions related with foreign curreney difference of foreign indexed
Ioans amount TL 18 (31 December 2015: TL 167) and is netted with loans amount on the
balance sheet.

e. Information on specific provisions for non-cash kaos that are non-funded and non
transformed into cash:

None (31 December 2015: None).

d. Information on other provisions:

i. Information on provisions for possible risks:

None (31 December 2015: None).
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

ii. Obligations related to employee riglıts:

in accordance with Turkish Labour Law, the reserve has been caiculated by estimating the
present vaiue of the future probable obiigation of the Bank arising from the retirement of
its empioyees. TAS 19 necessitates the actuarial valuation methods to calculate Iiabilities
of enterprises. in this context, the following actuarial assumptions vere used in the
calculation oftotal liabilities.

31 Decemher 2016 31 Deeember2ül5
Discount rale (%) 3.49 3.49

The movement of empioyee termination beneflts is shown beiow:

1 31 Decemher 2016 31 Deeembcr20l5
gfliçB çg!wiq.g fihç r?,q

ProvkionsRccognised During thc JŞ%) 7%.
Balance al (hc end of the period 180 234

in addition, as of 3 1 December 2016 the Bank have unused vacation provision of TL 1 72
(31 December 2015: TL 65).

liL Other provisions are explained if they exceed 10% of the tota provision balance

Other provisions amount of TL 1,612 comprising of TL 1,350 is for bonus provisions and
TL 262 for ongoing Iawsuits and other. (3! December 2015: TL 1,333).

11. İnformation on taxes payable:

ü. Information on current year tax Iiability:

1) Information on tax provision:

The explanations on tax calculation has been presented in Section Three. The Bank
recognized TL 1,503 as current tax liability, after the deducting temporary taxes paid in the
period, as of 3! December 2016 (31 December 2015: None).

ii) Information on taxes payable:

31 December 20161 31 Deeember20l5

.2fl.9!°
faxation on Marketable Securitics 2

r 1
pfl!IqçY.2Qj!flE._________
Forei£n_Exchangftansaction_Tax

—_________

ia.Mded Ta Payable —_________________

Jther 190 235
Fotal 1,963 407
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NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Aınounts are e>pressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless othenvise stated.)

EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

iii) Information on premium payables:

ociaI SecuriPrcrniumsc 50 32
ociai Security Premiums—Ernppşcr 55 1?
ank Social Aid Penson Fund Pıtmium-Ernp]2yee -j3ank Social Aid Pension Fund Premlum — Empioyer - -

Pension Eund Membership Fees and Provisions - Employee J -ı -

Pension Fund Membersilip çsandProvisions_-_Emjpyerf -p -

Jneppvmenı Insurance — Empioyçe 4. 4!
7: 4

Jthcr - -

[otal 116 75

b. Information on deferred tax Iiabilitv:

Explanations on the taxation of the Bank are presented in explanations and notes related to
unconsolidated assets.

12. Liabilities for assets heid for sale and assets of discontinued opentions

None (31 December 2015: None).

13. Information on the quantity, maturitv date, intercst rate and supplier 1km of the subordinated
Ioans giyen to the bank and transaetional option if there are any marketable securities

None (31 December 2015: None).

14. Information on shareholden’ equity:

a. Presentation of paid-in capital:

—, .__ ü! Decem
Comm o j 255 Q9
Prefcrrcd Sıock

b. Paid-in eapital amount, explanation as to whether the registered share capital systcm is
applied and ifso, amount of registered share capital ceiling:

The Bank does not apply the registered share cupital system.

e. Information on share capital increases and their sources; other relevant information on
increased share capital in current period:

None.

d. Explanation on the transfers from capital reserve to paid-in capital in the current period:

None.
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EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLWATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continned)

e. İnformation on capital eommitments, the general purpose and the estimated sources for
these eommitments until the end of the fiseal year and the subsequent interim period:

None (31 December 2015: None).

f. Information on the Bank’s income, profitability, prior period indicators on Iiqnidity and
uncertainü’ on ıhese indicators and their potential effects on the Bank’s capital:

The Bank considers there is no uncertaintv regarding the prior period income. profitability and
Iiquidity indicators. therefore the Bank does not foresee an effect on capital.

g. Summaıy information about privileged sharcs representing the capital:

None (31 December 2015: None).

h. İnformation on marketahle securities value increase fund:

___________ _______________

i 3! Deccmhcr2(1I6 31 December 2015
TL TL’ FC

From Subsidiarks, Afluliates and Joint ventures 1 . -1

___________________

Valuation difference

_______________________

1 il 1 (90)

________

Ratedillerence J 1

fotI ii! J (9O
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continucd)

111. EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO OFF-BALANCE SREET ACCOUNTS

1. Information on off-balance sheet commitments:

a. The amount and type of irrevocable commitments:

Irrevocabk Commitmenls 31 December 2016 31 December 201jJ
Fon rdAsseLpşe and salccornmitrnents 1 - 16,912
FonvarDejsit,pgşeandsakcommitmcnts_____ 2.009
Tax and fond HabllitiesfromcxşprnmiIme_J ili 25
Otlıcr IncDdable commitmcnts - -
Total Il 18.946

b. Type and amount of probable losses and obligations arising from off-balance sheet items

1. Non-cash Ioans ineluding guarantees, bank acceptances, coflaterais and others that
are accepted as financial commitments and other letter of credits:

As of 31 December 2016, the Bank has guarantee and indemnities amounting TL 197,910
(31 December 2015: TL 126,995) based upon the guarantee letter.

2. Revocable, irrevocable guarantces and other similar commitments and contingencies

As of 31 December 2016, the Bank has other guarantees amounting TL 19,356 (31
December 2015: None).

e. Total amount of non-cash Ioans:

d.

_______ ____________

31 December 2016! 31 Decemher_2015

1 - 22091
With Oriizinal Matudıv of! Ycar ot Less iban 1 Year_________

_______

60.356
Wi(h Original Maturitv of Niore Than t Year J7.500

__________

22.09!
OthcrNon-cash Loans

_______ ________

- 100.054!

-

104.903
‘Yola) 197.9101 126.995

Information on sectoral risk concentrations of non-cash loans:

Curreni l>eriod rdor Vedat)
1 31 December 2016 31 December 2015

TL(%> FÇ_,f’.j FC_f41
Agricultufli[_ -—
Ş2Lid!95L,___ .,,z
Forestn’ . - . . -
D!ıu_,,_ - .
MqLt_,________ 2,538 1.95 9,084 13.36 1.815 3.09 14,626 21.81
Mrnng . . -l --
Pmducııon 2538 1.95 8,4 12.45 1,730 2.90 14,686 2181
Eletısic.GasandWaler . -; 684 1.01 115 0.19
Conslnıttion 423m 3.24 s$4 avı 3.130 6.929 1029
Senic.s 123.6831 93.811 49,42 73.27! 54,690 91.66 45,715 67.89
Wholesale and Remil Trade 8.8981 6 82! 12.3171 18.261 33.241 55.71 20.651 3067
Hotel,FoodadBeveıaServic 10.689! 8.I - . 5,112 857 -
TspoaaıaMTekcommtmka6on 14.805! 1 135280.781 - ‘714’ 403
flnoı,cial lnsütuüons 2738 22.350 33,19
ReN Esane and Lasing Sepices 3,991 3 6384. 9 46’ -
SeIf-EmploymentServices —. .
Educaıjon Seıwices - . -

Hetilıh and SatIn) Services . - .

Other . -
Tmil 130.351 10ft00 67.459p ioo.ö W66 1(10.001 67.330 IOOAX
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e. Information on the non-cash Ioans classified in Group 1 and Group İİ:

31 Decem
TL! FC! TL FC

4on-Cash Loans 130,451 67,4591 - -

Letters of Guarantee 130,451 41,1191 - -

BankAccepıances
Letlers of Crediı . 6,9841 -j

osrneıns --

UndcrnTitingcomrnitments -

FactoringGuarantccs
—

Other Commitments and Contingencies - 19,356 - -

2. İnformation on derivative transactions:

31 Decemher2Olö 3! Decemher 21)15
Forward foreign currency purehase 13,689 3,835
transactions
Forward foreign currency seli 14,024 3,794
transactions
Currency swap-buy 10,419 32,122

Currency swap-seli 11,130 31,465
Total 49,262 71,216

3. İnformation on credit derivatives and related imposed risks:

None (31 December 2015: None).

4. İnformation on Contingent Assets and Liabiiities:

(1) Contingent asse!s

None

(10 Contingent liabilitles

As of3l December 2016, the Bank has reflected the provision for its ongoing iawsuits amounting
TL 262 to the financial statements. The process regarding the law suits is stili ongoing and decisions
wiiil be finalised after trial.

5. İnformation on services in the name of others’ names and accounts:

None (31 December 2015: None).
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

IV. EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO INCOME STATEMENT

1. Information on interest income:

a. Information on interest income on Ioans:

31 December 2016 [ 31 December 2015

TL EC
Shoğ-Ienn Laans 29,198 432Lj5 936
MediumfLontLLoans 951 3,102! 356

LıYMpn_ -ı -l -l -

Prcmiums Received [rom Rcsource Utilisation
SppoFund -! - .: -

Total 30,149! 3.534 16,71U 936

Information on interest income on banks:

31 Decemher 2016 1 31 December 2015
TL FCfl TL FC

FromıheCflRT() 14W 71
From Demestic Hanks 1.419 41 6.428
Erom Foreizn 174[ 7

roını 1,711 16 6,673 18

<9Thc ınıer,sı ınc,rnc frorn rcqu.rcd rcscn-n prcscntd in Frorn hc CBRİ” mc

Information on interest income on marketable securities:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
TL ET- TL ET

— -—

_______

‘rom Financial Asseis al Fair Valuc Ihmuızh Prolit ur
055

romAçailablç-Ibr-saleFinanchılAsscıs 41.583

____—-

47Lj.251
‘rom HeId-Io-Maturitv Inveslmcnls —

—-----------—---—--—---———-----——r--——-- 4.____.
ırotal 1,583! 47! 1.252!

d. Information on intcrest income received from investments in associates and subsidiaries:

None (31 December 2015: None).

b.

c.
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

2. Information on interest cxpense:

a. Information on interest expense on borrowings:

31 Decemher 2016 31 Decemher 2015

Tü FC Tü İT

Bnnks 1,842 3,158 766

fleCBRT - - - -
Domestic Banks 284 212 2 21

- 1.558? 2.946 - 745
HeadquaııcrsandBranchesAbroad —

Oher lnscitutions —ı — -
Totai I.842 3,1581 2 766

b. Information on interest expcnse giyen to investments in associates and subsidiaries:

None (31 December 20 5: None).

e. Interest expensc on issued marketable securities:

31 Deccmber 2016 31 December 2015
TL FC TL FC

Interest expense on marketable securities issued 75 1 İ - -

d. Maturity structure of the interest expense on deposits:

None (31 December 2015: None).

Information on diı’idcnd income:

None (31 December 2015: None).

Information on trading income/loss (Net):

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Income 32,699 13,732
Incorne from Capiml Niarkel Tmnsaelions 17r 4
Income from Derivative Financial Transaetions (9 1.539 1,076
ForeinExchangeGains 31.143
Loss (-) (27,915) (12,630)
j$J!gÇpjflşti9n —-.-—-—-—, (40)

-

Loss from Derivative Financial Transactiens (9 (2,318) (2.208)
IoçcişqŞanç_Lpss — (25.557) (?:258)

4,784! 1,102

Duc to the short maturit of derivative tinancial inslruments heid by the Bank, ehanges in cxchange rate creates gains
and İoss from derivutive fnancial transaclions.

3.

4,

—ı
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EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

5. Information on other operating income:

Other operating income TL 54 income from previous years’ provision cancellations and there is no
income regarding extraordinary accounts. (31 December 2015: TL 97)

6. Provision expenses related to Ioans and other receivables:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
-

‘p21 qZ!!L -

•.. !YQ! pl.pnns and Receivubles — - -

V. GmupndRecdvabIes
GenemlPmvision Expenses 1.801 2,178
PmvisionFpense for PossibleRisks
Marketable_Securiıies_lmpairnıentExpense

Financial Assets at Fair Valuc Through Prolit or Loss -

Available-Ibr-salc_Financial Asscts . -

Investmcnts in Associates, Subsidiaries and HcId-to
Maturity Securitles Valuç Decrease

Investments in Associates -

Subsidiaries 4
bini Ventures . -

IlcId-to-Matunty Investmcnts - —___________________

Other
lotal 1.801 2.178

Information related to other operating expenses:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
PersonneiExpenscs 8,294 6,000
Rcservc For Empoyee TerminalionBenelits — 107 107
Bank Social Aid Pension_Fund Deflcit Provision
Irnpafrmcrngpenses of FixcdAsseıs
Dprcciaıion Exenses of Fixcd Asseis . 187 122
InairıtExpenscs ofIntanbIcAsseLs

--____________________________

328 156
Impairmeni Expcnscs ol Equily Pariiciputions lbr which

Impairmenı -

DepreciationExpenscsofAsseisHeid lbrResale
lrnpşfrm ntExpcnsesofFixed Asseis Heid for Şule

6,040 4,122
1.519 1,116

-_____ 27 4
695 329

- .

- 3,799 2,673
Loss on Sales ol Asseis
Otlıer 1,656 2,3%
fotal 16,612 12,903

7-
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

8. Information on income/(Ioss) hefore tax from continuing or discontinued operations:

Loss before tax comes from net interest income amounting TL 30.512. net commission fee income
amounting TL 1,130 trading loss amounting TL 4,784 other operating ineome amounting TL 99,
provision for ban losses and other receivables amourning to TL 1,801 and other operating expenses
amounting TL 16,6 12.

9. Information on provision for taxes from continuing or discontinued operations:

As of3 1 December 2016 the Bank has current tax expense TL 4,191 TL (31 December 2015: None).
The Bank has deferred tax income amounting to TL 84(31 December 2015: TL 2,697 loss).

As of 31 December 2016, the Bank doesn’t have any discontinued operations.

10. Information on net income/(Ioss) from continuing or discontinued operations:

The Bank doesn’t have discontinued operations. The Bank’s net profit from continuing operations
amountingtoTL 14.005 (31 December 2015: TL 8,787).

11. Information on net income/(Ioss) for the period:

a. If the disclosure of ordinary banking transactions and the composition of income and
expense items is necessary to understand the annual performance of Bank, the
eomposition and amount of these items:

None (31 December 2015: None).

k If an accounting estimate change signiflcantly affects the profit/boss in the current period
or has a probability to significantly affeet the profiUboss in the subsequent periods, the
overail effect is disclosed:

There is no signiflcant change in accounting estimates which would affect the current or the
subsequent periods.

12. Disclosure of 20% of sub-accounts in the case of other line items exceed 10% of the income
statement total.

Information related to other income and discbosure and footnotes related to income statement and
information related to other expenses and disclosure and footnotes related to incorne statement are
presented in footnote numbered 5 and footnote numbered 7 respectively.
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EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

V. EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO STATEMENT OF CUANGES İN THE
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

1. İnformation on availaNe-for-sale financial assets:

“Unteatized gains and losses” arising from changes in the fair value of securities ciassifled as
available-for-sale are not recognized in current year income statements; they are recognized in the
“Marketable securities value increase fund” account under equity, until the financial assets are sold,
disposed or impaired.

There is gam for marketable securities valuation difference related to available-for-sale financial
assets ofTL 101(31 December 2015: TL 81 loss for marketable securities valuation ditlerence).

2. Amounts transferred to legal resenes:

The Bank has no amounts transferred to legal reserves for current period.

3. İnformation on distribution of profit:

No dividend distribution has been announced after the balance sheet date.

4. İnformation on capital increase:

The information related to capital increase is presented under Section Five.
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Vi. EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

1. Information on cash and cash equivalents:

Components of cash and cash equivalcnts and the accounting policy applied in their determination:

The effect of any change in the accounting policy of current period and the balance sheet recorded
amounts of the components that make tıp cash and cash equivalents (excluding rediscount balances,
reserve requirements, placements with maturity longer than 3 months and blocked accounts) are
considered as cash and cash equivalents.

a. Cash and casli equivalents at the beginning of the period:

Cash 34,436 12,663
CashandFoı-çinCurrencÇash 30 Il
Turkish Central Bank 34.406 12,652
Other . -

CashEquivalcnts 44,277 7.357
flanks 29,144 47,357

!Şan -

15.133
-

fliockcdarnountson -

Cash equkalents thamaturitş bngerıhan threc monıhs - -__________ -

Restricwdreservedposits
—_____

(‘aslı Elon Statements Cash and Cash Equivalents 59.134 48248

2. Explanation about other cash flows items and the eftect of changes in foreign cxchange rates
on cash and cash equivalents:

The “Other” items presented in “Net operating income before ehanges in operating assets and
Iiabilities” amount to TL 7,993(31 December 2015: TL 5.180) mainly consists fees and commissions
paid and other operating expenses excluding personnel expenses.

The “Net increase/decrease in other Şiabilities” hem under “Changes in operating assets and
liabilitles” amounting to TL 4,235 (31 December 2015: TL 2.657) consists of mainly changes in
prepaid expenses and other assets.

The “Net inerease/decrease in other Iiabilities” item under “Changes in operating assets and
liabilities” amounting to TL 6,923 (31 December 2015: 4,179) consists of mainiy changes in
miscellaneous payables, other liabilities and taxes and other duties payable.
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EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Vİİ. EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO THE BANK’S RİSK GROUP

1. The volume of transactions relating to the Bank’s risk group, outstanding Joan and deposit
transactions and prolit and Ioss of the period:

a. Currcnt Period (31 December 2016):

1 ülher real and legal persons tini
lnvesments in Associates,J Dirert and indiren sIıarclolders Iınve been included in dıe risl

Hanks’ Risk Group subsidhıriesaudjointvcnture4 of the flanI1 gmoj
Cash! -

Ç,sı ÇşL-----çE__ Non-Casl
Loans and Other
Receivables

—

Deginnıng of the
Period - - 22.475: 8.082 30227
End of the Pcnod - -ı 30.1991

Inlınest and Commıssion
ncome Received 1 ı — 237 -

Prior Period (31 December 2015):

i Olber mI and legal persons thaı
lnvestments in Assotiales; Direct and indiret shareholders have been inçloded in the dal

Şupjjrjytjçıres groo[
Casl Non-Cash’ Casl Non-CasI Cıısfr Non-Casi

Loans and Other
Receivables

Degınning of the
Persod - . .

Lnd of the Period - - — 22,475 8,082 30.227
Inlerest and
:ommission Income
Received — . — 98 74 40

b. İnformation on dcposits of the Bank’s risk group:

The Bank doesn’t have any deposits since it is an investment bank.

e. Information on fonvard and option agreements and other similar agreements made with
the Bank’s risk group:

No option and fonvafd agreements with the BantCs Risk Groop. (31 December2o 15: None).

As of3 1 December 2016. the Bank has TL 381 borrower funds from its risk group (3 1 December
2015: TL 10,213).

As of3l December 2016, the Bank has borrowings from its risk group TL 138,273.

d. İnformation on key management compensation:

As ofJI December 2016. key management compensation amount is TL 2.495 (3! December
20)5: TL 1.368).

VİIL EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO THE DOMESTIC, FOREİGN, OFF-SHORE
BRANCHES AND FOREİGN REPRESENTATIVES OF THE BANK

None (31 December 201 5: None).
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SECTION SIX

OTHER EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES

1. OTHER EXPLANATIONS RELATED TO OPERATIONS OF THE BANK

None.

11. EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

None.

SECTION SEVEN

EXPLANATIONS ON INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

1. EXPLANATIONS ON INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 have been audited by
Güney Bağımsız Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik A.Ş. (A member firnı ofEmsı8.Young
Global Limited) and the independent auditor’s report dated 16 February 2017 has been presented
preceding the unconsolidated financial statements.

IL EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES PREPARED BY INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

None (31 December 201 5: None).
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